TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

MONDAY, 17TH JUNE, 2013

THE TRAINING ROOM, COUNTY HALL, COUNTY BUILDINGS, ST CATHERINE STREET, CUPAR
AT 10.00 AM

AGENDA OF BUSINESS

PART i - OPEN MEETING

1 MEMBERSHIP

it is reported that Councillor David Bowes has intimated his resignation from the Tay Road Bridge
Joint Board, and has been replaced by Councillor Jimmy Black.

2 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

In terms of paragraph 10 of Schedule 1 to the Tay Road Bridge Order 1891, the Board is required to
appoint a Chairman.

3 MINUTE OF MEETING OF 4TH MARCH, 2013 — Page 5

(Copy enclosed).

4 ENGINEERING WORKS - Page 7

(Report No TRB12-2013 enclosed).

5 OPERATIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND CLOSURES - Page 11

(Report No TRB6-2013 enclosed).

6 2013/14 INSURANCE PROGRAMME - Page 15

(Report No TRB8-2013 enclosed).

7 UNAUDITED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013

{(a) TREASURER'S REPORT ON THE UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013

(Report No TRB12-2013 enclosed) - Page 19

{b) UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAﬁ ENDED 318T MARCH, 2013
(Copy enclosed} — Page 23.

8 EXTERNAL AUDIT-ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN -261 2113 - Page 47

(Report No TRB10-2013 enclosed. KPMG's Annual Strategy Overview and Plan is appended at the
end of the agenda papers).

tdocumentsitayrdbib\agendas\2013\1 70613ag.doc(des)



9 iNTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT

(a) INTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT 2013/06

(Copy enclosed) — Page 48.

(b) RESPONSE TO INTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT TO MEMBERS

(Report No TRB8-2013 enclosed) — Page 123,
10 ADDITIONAL STAFFING POLICIES — Page 127

{Repoirt No TRB7-2013 enclosed).
" DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 16th September at 10.00 am in Dundee.

PART ll - CONFIDENTIAL ITEM

The Committee may resolve under Section 50{A){4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973 that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the undernoted items of
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraphs 6 and 9 of Part | of Schedule 7A of the Act.

12 DUNDEE CENTRAL WATERFRONT - LAND TRANSFER - Page 129

(Report No TRB13-2013 enclosed).



REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD — 17 JUNE 2013

REPORT ON: ENGINEERING WORKS

REPORT BY: ENGINEER TO THE BOARD ITEM No4— ___________________________

REPORT NO: TRB 12-2013

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To advise the Joint Board on the current situation regarding Engineering warks on
the bridge.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 It is recommended that the Joint Board:
¢ note the position on current progress;
» approve the appointment of Sir Robert McAlpine to carry out remedial works

to the North Approach Viaducts up to the value of £160,000.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 The Treasurer advises that the above expenditure can be met from allowances
within the capital budget for 2013/14.

4 SUSTAINABILITY POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no Sustainability Policy imp'!ications of relevance to this report.

5 EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no equal opportunities implications of relevance to this report.

6 IMPLICATIONS TO BRIDGE USERS

6.1 There are no major implications for bridge users arising from this report.

7 BACKGROUND

7.1 Pier Collision Protection Works

As noted at the 10 December 2012 Tay Road Bridge Joint Board meeting, these
works were completed ahead of time, befow budget and to high quality and safety
standards. In total, 264 jobs were created on the project and 191 of these jobs

were filled by local iabour (72%).

The finalised outurn costs are £17.74 million compared to an approved budget of
£19.1 million, a saving of approximately £1.36 million.

In March 2013, the project was entered for a British Construction industry (BCI)
award and we have been advised that the project has been shortlisted. The
project has also just been entered for a Saltire Award for Civil Engineering.

A site visit for members of the Board will be arranged in the near future.



Report No. TRB-12-2013

7.2

7.3

7.4

Carriageway Resurfacing/Replacement of Expansion Joints

Reference is made to Article Il of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board meeting of 4
March 2013 where it was advised that the existing carriageway surfacing is the
original asphalt surfacing laid in 1966 with a surface dressing applied in 1993/84.
The expansion joints at the end of each span of the bridge were replaced in the
early 1990's and they are now reaching the end of their design life.

Investigatory works are currently underway to determine the condition of the
surface dressing and the underlying asphalt surfacing with a view to identifying the
appropriate surfacing works required. A Ground Penetrating Radar Survey has
been commissioned to ascertain the current condition of the surfacing and
concrete bridge deck. This will be supplemented by coring and testing of the

asphalt surfacing.

Allowances of approximately £3.825 mitflion have been made in the capilai pian
over 2013/14 to 2015/16 to investigate, procure and carry out these works.

Further reports will be brought to the Board in due course detailing progress with
this project.

North Approach Viaduct Remedial Works

This item of the capital budget relates to the existing element of the North
Approach Viaducts that is not being renewed as part of the Dundee Waterfront
works. Inspection works continue to be carried out to determine the repairs
required to bring the reinforced concrete deck, road surface and bridge expansion
joints up to an appropriate standard such that minimal works will be required for
the foreseeable future. Concrete repairs and protective coatings are required
along with new bridge deck waterproofing, expansion joints and road surfacing.

An allowance of £160,000 has been made in the capital plan in 2013/14 to carry
out these works to coincide with completion of the Dundee Waterfront works to the
ramps. It is recommended that these works are procured through the existing
contract with Sir Robert McAlpine as they are integral with the works currently
being carried out on the bridge ramps and utilising the existing contract which was
won in tender is the best value approach. The Board’s approval to proceed on this

basis is sought.
Inspection Programme

Principal Inspections of the bridge are a statutory requirement and permit the
efficient planning of future maintenance requirements to ensure the continuing
good condition of the structure. Principal inspections are carried out every 6 years
and require a detailed close up inspection of all elements of the bridge. General
inspections are carried out every 2 years.

As part of the Asset Management Plan approved by the Board at the meeting of
10 Septernber 2012, a programme of such inspections was prepared and these
are currently underway utilising existing Tay Road Bridge staff and Dundee City
Council civil engineering staff as appropriate, with specialist input as required.

As noted in Article 1l of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board meeting of 4 March
2013, the principal inspection of the bridge columns and piers was completed by
specialist abseilors in February 2013 with no major issues identified. A scour
regular scour survey of the river bed was carried out in November 2012 which
confirmed no significant variation from previous surveys and no action required.
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7.5

Any issues that may arise from the inspection programme will be reported to the
Board as appropriate.

Dundee Waterfront - Removai and Reconstruction of Bridge Ramps

Dundee City Council awarded the contract for this stage of the works to Sir Robert
MacAlpine Ltd in August 2011 at a cost of £8.2 million. This stage involves the
phased removal and replacement of the remainder of the approach ramps to the
Tay Road Bridge including the construction of temporary diversion routes
necessary for the removal of the ramps. The works also include the construction
of elements of roads, drainage and services within the Waterfront Development.

The works to the remainder of the bridge ramps are to be carried out in a number
of phases over a two year period with completion by December 2013. Works
started in January 2012 on the widening of the southbound on ramp at Customs
House to accommodate two wide lanes of traffic. These works were completed
and opened in late April 2012 with this being the only route onto the southbound
carriageway of the Tay Road Bridge for traffic.

These traffic management arrangements for access to and egress from the bridge
are those generally in place until the new ramps open in December 2013. These
new long term temporary arrangements continue to work well.

The new traffic arrangements enabled the on ramp at Tayside House to be closed
and demolition of the remaining bridge ramps started in early June 2012 and was
completed ahead of programme by the end of July 2012. The demalition material
from the ramps was crushed and graded for recycling as fill material in the
embankment of the new realigned bridge approach ramps. The new on ramps are
of reinforced earth construction with a granite clad facing to match the new
westbound off ramp.

Construction of the new realigned ramp is well underway, re-using the crushed
material within the vibro stone column piles and ground improvements structure
and in the embankment itself. The western side of the new approach ramps and
new South Marketgait Bridge at South Victoria Dock Road is now nearly complete

and ready to open to traffic.

In late June 2013, the existing southbound on ramp at Customs House is to be
demolished and the new ftraffic route onto the Tay Road Bridge will be via the
newly constructed western section of the realigned ramp. This will allow the
eastern side of the new approach ramps and new South Marketgait Bridge to be
built. This element of work is programmed for compietion by November 2013 thus
completing the works to the Tay Road Bridge approach ramps.

The works continue to progress well and are currently ahead of schedule.

Further regular reports will be brought to the Board detailing progress with this
important project.

The Bridge Manager will continue to provide the Board with a monthly update on
progress.

£
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4

8 CONSULTATIONS

8.1 The Cierk, Treasurer and Bridge Manager have been consuited in the preparation
of this report.

9 BACKGROUND PAPERS

9.1 None.

Fergus Wilson
Engineer to the Board

FW/EH

Dundee City Council
Dundee House

Dundee

4 June 2013
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD ~ 17 June 2013
REPORT ON OPERATIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND CLOSURES

THE BRIDGE MANAGER

TRB 06- 2013 ITEM No: 5

--------------------------------------

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To appraise the Joint Board of the number and nature of operational restrictions and closures
applied between 1 February and 30 April 2013.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

The Board are asked to note the contents of this Report as at 30 April 2013.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications as a result of this report.

4 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 None.

5. COMMENTARY ON OPERATIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND CLOSURES

5.1 Restrictions are applied to the traffic on the bridge for a number of reasons inciuding recovering
debris, breakdowns, high winds and other operational requirements.

A summary of the restrictions applied between February and April 2013 are given below:-

)

Single carriageway closures

Reason Total No of Average
Duration | Occasions | Duration
{(Minutes) {(Minutes)

Operational 883 299 2.8

Breakdown 147 16 9
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i)

Traffic Restrictions

Reason Single Total No of Average
Carriageway | Duration | Occasions | Duration
/Both {Minutes) (Minutes)

High Winds

No Double Both 9465 21 450

Deck

Buses

Allowed

Cars Oniy Both 6865 5 133

ROAdWOTKS

TRBJB Single 0 0 0

External Single 0 0 0

Contractor

iii) Closures on both carriageways

Reason Full Total No of Average

Closure | Duration | Occasions | Duration
(Minutes) {Minutes)

Operational Yes 0 0 0

(Night

Closures)

High Winds Yes 300 1 300

Other Yes 238 10 24

Incidents

i) Availability of Bridge

Based on the above figures the various levels of availability of the bridge to users is as

follows:-

Full availability (No restrictions) 90.9%
Partial Availability (Some restrictions) 8.7%
No Availahility (Full Closure) 0.4%



Availability of Bridge to Users
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Figure 1 — Comparison of Availability of Bridge to Users

As can be seen from Figure 1 the level of availability has remained constant over the period from
the previous quarter’s figures. Overall availability has remained in excess of 99%.

6 CONSULTATIONS

6.1 The Treasurer, Clerk and Engineer to the Board have been consuited in the preparation of this
report.

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS

7.1 None

IAIN MACKINNON

BRIDGE MANAGER
13 May 2013
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 17 JUNE 2013

REPORT ON: 2013/2014 INSURANCE PROGRAMME

REPORT BY: TREASURER

REPORT NO: TRB 9-2013

4.1

42

4.3

4.4

4.5

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report provides an overview of the insurance arrangements for the financial year
2013/2014.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Board notes the details contained within this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications of the 2013/2014 insurance programme, as detailed in Appendix
A, are that the covers have been negotiated within the provision contained in the approved
2013/2014 Revenue Budget of £122,335, with the exception of the increase in the premium
for the Marine policy which is still the subject of negotiations. Once these negotiations are
finalised the outturn will be reported to the Board.

MAIN TEXT

All policies are negotiated by Dundee City Council's Risk and Business Continuity Manager
under the Service Level Agreement with the Corporate Services (Finance) Department. All
policies are arranged through the insurance brokers Marsh with the exception of Directors
& Officers and Death in Service policies which are arranged directly with the insurers.

Property / Material Damage / Business Interruption:

Covers property damage to the bridge assets, buildings and contents, and increased cost
of working following insured damage. The first loss limit for damage to the bridge is £13m.
The premium for 2013/2014 has reduced due to this cover renewal being the subject of a
tender exercise by the brokers, particularly with the recent completion of the Pier Collision

Protection Works.

Combined Liability Policies:
These policies cover the Board's legal liabiiities to its empioyees and to members of the

public. The premium for 2013/2014 has reduced due to this cover renewal being the
subject of a tender exercise by the brokers.

Directors & Officers:
This policy is a traditional liability policy covering the individual and collective legal liabilities

of Board Members and officers.

Fidelity Guarantee:
This policy relates to fraud / misappropriation of materials by Board employees.

Personal Accident:
This policy covers personal accident and travel exposures. Variable injury benefits cover

lump sum payments for death, permanent disablement, and permanent disfigurement.
The travel insurance is applicable for any travel undertaken primarily for business purposes
and includes cover for medical expenses, personal belongings, business equipment, cash,
travel documents, travel disruption, and personal fiability.

15



16

4.6 Hired in Plant:
This policy responds to loss of or damage to smali plant hired in by the Board.

4.7 Engineering Combined:
The principal cover afforded by this policy relates to inspection of gantries, associated
infrastructure and other owned plant in compliance with statutory requirements.
The premiums increased in 2012/2013. This was due to the fact that prior to the recent
modifications to the runway beam and the gantries the insurers were satisfied that an
annual inspection was sufficient. However, following the modification work the insurers
considered it necessary to undertake six monthly inspections in accordance with Lifting
Operations and Lifting Equipment Regulations (LOLER) until such time that they are
confident that the inspection frequency can revert to being carried out annually. This
resulted in increased visits to site from insurance inspectors and subsequent increased
premiums.
The inspectors are now satisfied that annual inspections are again sufficient and therefore
the premium has reduced in 2013/2014.

4.8 Motor Fleet:
Covers any employee of the Board for vehicles that are the property of the Bridge Board
and any that are on hire, loaned or leased to the Board. An excess of £100 is applicable
on each claim.

4.9 Marine:
Provides cover for damage to Board owned vessels and any liabilities resulting from their
use. This premium is anticipated to increase for 2013/2014 due to several claims in recent
months. An estimated figure has been included in Appendix A as negotiations between
DCC's Risk and Business Continuity Manager and the insurers are on-going.

4.10 Death in Service:
Provides additionat life cover to employees over and above that provided by the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). At present this is a contractual benefit for all
current employees who were in post at 31 December 2011 but was closed to new
employees after 31 December 2011 (see Report TRB26-2011 at Board Meeting on 12
December 2011). This will result in a gradual reduction in premiums as the number of
employees covered reduces over time.

5 SUSTAINABILITY POLICY IMPLICATIONS
None.

6 EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS
None.

7 BACKGROUND
There are no significant insurance renewal issues to report on for the Board. All covers
have been renewed with existing Insurers.

MARJORY M STEWART

TREASURER 4 JUNE 2013



APPENDIX A
TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
PREMIUM SUMMARY 2013/2014
CLASS 2009/10 | 2010/11 | 2011112 | 2012/13 | 2013/14

£ £ £ £ £

Property 69,170 65,723 65,811 65,992 54,060
Combined Liability 18,480 17,591 17,864 18,804 | 16,960
Excess Public Liability 3,969 3,969 4,007 4,007 4,007
Directors & Officers 1,587 1,620 1,357 1,357 1,357
Fidelity 827 800 848 869 869
Personal Accident 983 983 093 943 943
Hired in Plant 788 812 819 819 819
Engineering Combined 6,264 6,328 5,386 15,166 | 13,148
Motor Fieet 3,367 3,605 3,896 3,628 3,700
Marine 7,381 7,500 7,500 7,078 | 10,000
Beath in Service 4335 4335| 4335 4346] 4308
Business Continuity Planning 3,000 - - - -
TOTAL 120161 | 113.266 | 112,816 | 123,009 110,168 |

Premiums include HM Government's Insurance Premium Tax (6% from 2011, previously 5%).

The 2013/2014 premium for Marine Insurance is an est
and Business Continuity Manager and the insurers are on-going.

place.

imate as negotiations between DCC’s Risk
Insurance cover remains in
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 17 JUNE 2013

REPORTON:  UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2013
REPORTBY:  TREASURER
ITEM No:r’(“] ----------------
REPORT NO:  TRB 12-2013

1

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide some additional commentary on the unaudited Statement of Accounts for
the year ended 31 March 2013 which is being submitted to the Tay Road Bridge Joint
Board along with this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:
i notes the contents of this covering report;

ii notes the unaudited Statement of Accounts which has been submitted along
with report;

jii instructs the Treasurer to submit this Statement of Accounts to the Controller of
Audit, Accounts Commission for Scotland:

iv notes that the key assumptions underpinning the independent actuaries
calculation of the Board's IAS 19 liability have been reviewed and accepted by
Dundee City Council as administering authority for the Pension Fund.,

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Board's 2012/2013 Movement in Reserves Statement shows that there was a
break-even position during the year. This gives a total General Reserve Balance of
£1,160,591 as at 31 March 2013.

BACKGROUND

The relevant statutory provisions regarding the preparation of the Board's Accounts are
contained in the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 1985, as amended by
the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 1997, Section 4 of
these regulations requires that .. all the accounts of the local authority are made up
and balanced as soon as practicable after the year end of each financial year and that
sufficient copies of an abstract of the said accounts for each financial year are prepared
... and submitted to the authority and the Controller of Audit not later than 30 June in the

next financial year...".

As in previous years the Statement of Accounts have been prepared in accordance with
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code). There are no significant
changes included within the 2012/2013 Code, that impact upon the Board's Accounts.

The Statement of Accounts already includes a detailed commentary on the figures
contained therein and it is not intended to repeat this in this covering report. it is
however, worth reiterating a few of the more salient points.

During the financial year the Board received quarterly revenue monitoring reports to
keep the members fully appraised as to actual spend-to-date and the projected revenue
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4.5

4.6

outturn position. The Board's 2012/2013 Movement in Reserves Statement shows that
there was a balanced budget during the year. The main variances were as follows:

£000
Staff Costs underspend {(40)
Property Costs underspend (18)
Third Party Payments underspend (81)
Increased Financing and Investment income (13)
Non-Specific Grant Income shortfall 177
Other minor budget heads overspend (25
TOTAL -

Further details of the other areas of under and overspend together with reasons for
these variances are included on page 8 of the Statement of Accounts. The overall
effect of the above resulted in a closing General Reserve Balance of £1,160,591 as at

31 March 2013.

On 12 December 2011, the Board approved a 2012/2013 Capital Expenditure
Programme (Report TRB 33-2011) for various works on the bridge and other
miscellaneous capital purchases. The programme totalled expenditure of £8,556,000 in
2012/2013, which would be funded by capital grant from the Scottish Government. The
Board received quarterly capital monitoring reports to keep members fully appraised as
to the actual spend-to-date and the projected capital expenditure outturn position. The
last projected outturn on the capital programme of £10,493,000 was reported to the

Board on 4 March 2013, (report TRB 4-2013 refers).

During the financial year 2012/2013, the Board incurred capital expenditure of
£10,490,000, i.e. an overspend of £1,934,000 against the approved capital budget. The
variance against the original budget relates to slippage from 2011/2012 of £4.5m, offset
by net budget savings during the year of £2.1m and slippage into 2013/2014 of £0.5m.
In effect, the £0.5m underspends that have occurred due to slippage against the Capital
Budget will flow through and cause equivalent overspends in the current year's Capitai
Budget (i.e. in 2013/2014). It should be noted that unspent capital grant will be carried
forward to 2013/2014 to offset any additional expenditure.

Copies of the enclosed Accounts will now be sent to the Controlier of Audit at the
Accounts Commission for Scotland. He will then instruct the Board's appointed external
auditor (Mr Stephen Reid, Engagement Director, KPMG) to commence his audit of the
Accounts. The outcome of the audit will be reported back to the Board in due course.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

This report has been screened for any policy implications in respect of Sustainability,
Strategic Environment Assessment, Anti-Poverty and Equality Impact Assessment and
Risk Martagement. There are no major issues identified,



6 CONSULTATIONS

The Bridge Manager and Clerk to the Board have been consulted on the content of this
report,

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

MARJORY M STEWART
TREASURER 5 JUNE 2013
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

MEMBERS AND OFFICIALS

The Board comprises 12 elected members who are appainted by the three constituent iocal authorities to serve on

the Board

. Dundee City Council nominates 6 members, Angus Council have 1 member and Fife Council nominate

the remaining 5 members. Following the previous Scottish Local Government Elections that were held in May 2013
it was agreed by the Board that Dundee City Council would continue to act as lead authority to the Board, and
consequently, the Council are required to appoint officers to serve as officials of the Board, At the end of financial

year 2012

/2013, the Members and Officials of the Board were:

Representing Dundee City Council- . . .

Councillor Bill Campbell (et

i
Councillor Tom Ferguson _
Councillor Fraser McPherson R F "'HE

Councillor David Bowes (Cheir) ﬁ‘f‘ M AR
Councillor Ken Lynn J UHUCC L H H U ' N G
Ul

Representing Angus Council =

Councillor Sheila Hands

Ay
Counil

Representing Fife Council

Councillor Margaret Taylor (Vice Chair)
Councillor Jim Young

Councillor Brian Thomson

Councillor Bill Connor

Councillor Andy Heer

Bridge Manager

Mr tain MacKinnon BSc, C Eng, MICE

Engineer - -

Mr Fergus Wilson BSc, MBA, C Eng, MICE, MCIHT, MAPS, Dundee City Council

Clerk :

Mr Roger Mennie LLB (Hons), DipLP, Dundee City Council

Treasurer o
Mrs Marjory M Stewart FCCA, CPFA, Dundee City Council
Contact details:
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board website: www.tayroadbridge.co.uk
Bridge Manager Engineer Clerk Treasurer
Bridge Office ¢/o Dundee City Council cfo Dundee City Council ¢/o Dundee City Council
Marine Parade City Development Dept Corporate Services Dept Corporate Services Dept
Dundee 50 North Lindsay Street 21 City Square 50 North Lindsay Street
01382-221881 Dundee Dundee Bundee
iain.mackinnon@tayroad 01382-433711 01382-434202 01382433555
bridge.co.uk fergus.wilsan@ roger.mennie@ marjory.stewart@
dundeecity.gov.uk dundeecity.gov.uk dundeecity.gov.uk
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

QOrganisational Changes

Following the Scottish Local Authority Elections on 3 May 2012, the membership of the Board at June

2012 was that shown below:

Bridge Manager’s Report

Position  Name Council
Chair Clir David Bowes Dundee City Council
Vice Chair Clir Margaret Taylor Fife Council
Member  Clir Bill Campbell Dundee City Council
Member Cilr Will Dawson Dundee City Council
Member  Clir Tom Ferguson Dundee City Council
Member  Clir Ken Lynn Dundee City Council
Member  Baillie lan Borthwick Dundee City Council
Member  Clir Bill Connor Fife Council
Member  Clir Andy Heer Fife Council
Member  Clir Brian Thomson Fife Council

Fife Council

Member Clr Jim Young

Member  Clir Sheila Hands Angus Council

Councilior David Bowes was elected Chair of the Board and Councillor Margaret Taylor was elected Vice
Chair of the Board at the Board meeting in June 2012,

The Chair, Councillor David Bowes, has intimated that he will resign from his position of Chair and
Member of the Board and a new Chair will be elected and a new Member of the Board will be appointed at

the Board Meeting of June 2013.

In addition to this, Baillie lan Borthwick resigned from the Board in February 2013 and was replaced by
Councillor Fraser Macpherson, Dundee City Council.

The Bridge Manager would like to extend his thanks to the outgoing Chair of the Board for his support and
assistance during his time in post.

Management Arrangements with Scottish Government

During this period, the main point of contact with the Scottish Government continued to be the Trunk Road
and Bus Operations Team of Transport Scotland. Meetings have been held on a regular basis between
Board Officers and officers from the Trunk Road and Bus Operations Team to discuss financial matters

etc.



Contracts

Pier Collision Protection Works

The Bridge Manager and bridge staff have been extensively involved in the construction process for the
Pier Collision Protection Works contract, which was awarded to Volker Stevin in January 2011, primarily
regarding navigation issues associated with the works. This involved changing the navigation lights on the
existing structure to tie in with the Contractors planned programme of work and where necessary at short
notice when operations were affected by bad weather etc.

The Bridge Manager, in conjunction with the Engineer to the Board, was involved in discussions with
designer Jacobs finalising issues relating to on-going operational and maintenance needs once works

were completed.

Inspections to Columns and Piers

The Board’s two self propelled maintenance gantries were used to provide access for the Inspections to
Columns and Piers Contract awarded to Pendrich Ltd. In addition to the gantries the Board provided
safety boat cover using the Board's safety boat. The gantries and boat were manned by the Board's
Maintenance personnel. By providing these services {o the Contracior efficiency savings were made,
reducing the overall capital cost of the work.

Dundee Central Waterfront Development

Contract 3 for the demolition and reconstruction of the remaining ramps was awarded to Sir Robert
McAlpine in 2012. The Bridge Manager has been involved throughout the works in planning meetings
involving traffic management affecting bridge users.

To date the bulk of the works have had litile or no effect on bridge users.

SESTRAN Park & Ride Proposal

The Bridge Manager has been in discussions with SESTRAN regarding acquisition of land owned by the
Board at the Fife landfall for use as a Park & Ride facility. Approval has been given by the Board for the
Clerk to enter into negotiations for the sale of the land to SESTRAN.

Traffic

Due to the on-going work to reconfigure the bridge approach spans as part of the Dundee City Waterfront
Development there have been prolonged periods where the traffic counters have been unavailable for use
therefore there has been insufficient data collected to provide meaningful comparison of traffic flows. On
completion of the reconfiguration of the bridge approaches the traffic counters will be reinstated and full

traffic figures collected for future reports.

One or both lanes on the bridge were closed on a number of occasions over the past twelve months. The
table below summarises the reasons and number of occurrences:-

Wind Wind Wind Works Breakdowns | Operational closures
speed > speed > speed > Fuil and Minor | Debris coilection etc
80mph 60mph 45mph Closures | Accidents
Closed Cars No
fo all Only Double
Vehicles Deck
buses
0 12 47 2 82 1,111

Over the period there had been no full closures due to winds exceeding 80mph and the number of wind
refated restrictions had reduced aver this time compared to 2011/2012.
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Staffing Issues

Staff Establishment
There has been no change to the number of permanent posts within the staff establishment which stands

as follows:-

Administration
Operational
Maintenance
Cleaner (PIT)
Total

—

N = i
&

lain Mackinnon

Bridge Manager

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
XX June 2013



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
TREASURER'S REPORT

Introduction
This report is intended as a commentary on the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board's financial position, as presented

within the Statement of Accounts for the financial year 2012/2013.

Annual Governance Statement (see page 10)
This statement sets out the Board's Corporate Govemnance arrangements, explaining how the Board conducts

its business, both internally and in its dealings with others. The main components of the system are listed,
together with any significant weaknesses that have been identified and the remedial action taken.

Remuneration Report (see page 12)
This statement sets out the remuneration and accrued pension benefits of the senior employee of the Board

and the policy context, in accordance with Scottish Government regulations.

Statemnent of Responsibifities for the Statement of Accounis {see page 15)
This statement sets out the main financial responsibilities of the Board and the Treasurer.

The Accounting Statements (see pages 16 to 46)

Movement in Reserves Statement;
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Board, analysed into

‘usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and 'unusable reserves'’.

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account:
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally

accepted accounting practices.

Balance Sheet:
Shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Board.

Cash Flow Statement:
Shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Board during the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statements:
These are intended to give the reader further information which is not separately detailed in the financial

statements. They also include the Accounting Policies which set out the basis upon which the financial
statements have been prepared and explains the accounting treatment of both general and specific items.

Revenue Expenditure
The Tay Road Bridge Joint Board, at its meeting on 12 December 2011, approved the 2012/2013 Revenue

Budget. The final budget showed a break-even position. The projected General Reserve balance as at 31
March 2013 would be £1,225,591. However, subsequent overspends totalling £65,000 occurred in 2011/2012
(after the budget for 2012/2013 was set) which had the effect that the projected General Reserve balance as

at 31 March 2013 decreased to £1,160,591.

The Board received quarterly Revenue Monitoring reports during 2012/2013 in order to keep the members
fully appraised as to the projected revenue outturn position.

The following table reconciles the Revenue Budget approved by the Board on 12 December 2011 (as
adjusted) to the revised budget figures that are inciuded in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement shown on page 17. The actual outturn for 2012/2013 was a net overspend against budget of
£19,000 before the application of accounting adjustments and the detailed variance analysis is set out on

page 8.
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Staff Costs (Underspend £40,000)
Mainly reflects posts that have been heid vacant during the year. In addition, expenditure on overtime has
been lower than budgeted following a reduction in the level of overtime worked as there were relatively few

confracts requiring bridge maintenance staff,

Property Costs (Underspend £18,000)
Reflects lower expenditure relating to electricity costs due to a new contract being negotiated at the start of

the year. In addition, expenditure on alterations and repairs within the administration building was lower than
anticipated.

Supplies & Services (Overspend £1,000)
There were overspends on de-icing materials due to adverse weather conditions, as well as the engineering

combined insurance premium as a result of a requirement for more regular inspections due to recent
modifications to the runway beam and the gantries. These variances were partly offset by the fact that on-
going capital contracts meant a reduction in the amount of bridge maintenance work carried out during the
year which has resulted in lower than anticipated expenditure on the purchase of equipment and materials,
plant hire and other miscellaneous supplies and services.

Transport Costs (Underspend £3,000)

Refiects minor underspends in a number of budget headings inciuding travel and subsistence, and business
mileage as more training has been brought on-site. Additionally, there have also been underspends relating
to fuel costs for the gantries and safety boat as the amount of bridge maintenance work carried out during the

year was reduced.

Third Party Payments (Underspend £81,000)
Reflects savings relating to structural inspections which could not be conducted as the gantries have been in

use by a contractor. Further underspends have resulted from the carriageway joints not requiring repairs,
allowances for professional fees relating to the cathodic protection system not being spent as repairs are
required to be completed before this is fully operational, and expenditure on charges for human resource
services being less than anticipated. These variances were partly offset by increased expenditure on principal
inspections of the gantries as a result of the formal insurance inspections.

Corporate and Democratic Core Costs (Underspend £3,000)
Reflects a reduction in external audit fees.

Other Operating Income and Expenditure (Income Surplus £1,000)
Reflects a refund for bank charges.

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure (Income Surplus £13,000)
Reflects increase in interest received on bank balances due to higher than anticipated average balances due

to large amounts of Capital Grant income.,

Non-Specific Grant Income (Income Shortfall £177,000)
Reflects the fact that any unused Revenue Grant (with conditions) is to be held in creditors so that it can be

applied to match expenditure in future years.

General Reserve
There was a break-even position for the financial year 2012/2013. This gives a total General Reserve balance

of £1,160,591 at 31 March 2013.
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Capital Expenditure and Financing
During 2012/2013, the Board incurred capital expenditure of £10,420,000 on the following projects:-

£000
Inspection to Colurmns and Piers 87
Carriageway Resurfacing 5
Gantry 1
lce Detection 13
Pier Collision Protection 10,30
Other Projects _ 83
10,490

Capital expenditure was funded as follows:
£000
Capital Grant from the Scottish Government 10,489
Capital Receipts 1
10,490

In addition to the above, an asset of £0.36m has been recognised in the Balance Sheet (2011/2012: £2.55m).
This relates to the western off-ramp which had been constructed by Dundee City Council as part of the
Central Waterfront development and subsequently transferred to the Board. In addition, £4.942m has been
included within assets under construction at 31 March 2013 for the remaining new on-off ramps.

Control of Revenue and Capital Expenditure
The control of both the revenue and capital expenditure of the Board is an on-going and substantial exercise
which requires a positive contribution from staff and elected members to ensure that the Board's financial

objectives are achieved and that financial resources are fully utilised.

Pension Liability (IAS 19)
Under IAS 19 (Employee Benefits} the Board is required to inciude figures in its Statement of Accounts

relating to the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of the pension schemes for its employees. It has
been estimated that the Board had a net pension liability of £2,213,000 as at 31 March 2013, The estimated
net pension liability at 31 March 2012 was £2,072,000. A decrease in the real interest rate and changes in the
underlying assumptions used to calculate scheme fiabilities have caused an increase in liabilities. This was
party offset by an increase in the value of scheme assets, resulting in the overall net liability increasing by

£141,000.

Acknowledgements
During the 2012/2013 financial year the Board's financial position has required continuous scrutiny and strict

budgetary control. | would like to thank the Bridge Manager, Bridge Engineer and their staff in controlling the
Board's expenditure and income. [n addition, | wish to mention my appreciation of the help and co-operation
provided during the financial year by the elected members and by Roger Mennie, Clerk to the Board.

| would also like to extend my appreciation for the contribution made by the current chair, Councillor David
Bowes, wio will stand down as chair with effect from the Board meeting on 17 June 2013.

Finally, | would conclude my report by thanking all staff who contributed to the preparation of the Board's
201272013 Statement of Accounts.

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
XX June 2013



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of Responsibility

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the
law and appropriate standards. This is to ensure that public funds and assets at its disposal are safeguarded,
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently, effectively, and ethically. The Board also has a duty
to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way its functions are carried out.

In discharging these responsibilities elected members and senior officers are responsible for implementing
effective arrangements for governing the Board's affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
including arrangements for the management of risk.

To this end the Board has approved and adopted a local Code of Corporate Governance that is consistent
with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework Defivering Good Governance in Local Government. This
statement explains how Tay Road Bridge Joint Board delivers good governance and reviews the effectiveness

of these arrangements.,
The Board's Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values by which the Board is
directed and controlled. It also describes the way it engages with and accounts to stakeholders. It enables
the Board to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and consider whether those objectives have

led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.,

The framework reflects the arrangements in place to meet the six supporting principles of effective corporate
governance. These are as foliows:

» focusing on the purpose of the Board and on outcomes for the community and creating and
implementing a vision for the local area;
* members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions

and roles;
+ promoting values for the Board and demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding

high standards of conduct and behaviour;

taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk;
developing the capacity and capabilities of members and officers to be effective; and

engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability.

Within the overall control arrangements the system of internal financial control is intended to ensure that
assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and material errors or
irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period. It is based on a framework of
regular management information, financial regulations, administrative procedures and management

supervision.
The overall control arrangements inciude:

identifying the Board's objectives in the Service Plan;

monitering of abjectives by the Board and senior officers;

reporting performance regularly to Board meetings;

clearly defined Standing Orders and Schemes of Administration covering Financial Regulations,

Tender Procedures and Delegation of Powers;

» approved Fraud Guidefines which include anti-fraud and corruption strategies, and "whistle-blowing"
arrangements;

* setling targets to measure financial and service performance; and

» formal revenue and capital budgetary control systems and procedures.

* & & o

Additionally, in order to support Chief Financial Officers in the fulfitment of their duties and to ensure that local
authority organisations have access to effective financial advice of the highest level, CIPFA's Role of the Chief
Financial Officer has introduced a "comply or explain” requirement in the Annual Statement of Accounts.
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Review of Effectiveness

Members and officers of the Board are committed to the concept of sound governance and the effeciive
delivery of Board services and take into account comments made by internal and external auditors.

In addition the Board have made a self-assessment of their own arrangements. This involved the completion,
by the Bridge Manager, of a 56-point checklist covering the six supporting principles defined in
CIPFA/SOLACE's Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. This indicated a high level of

compliance.

The Board's internal Audit Service operates in accordance with the CIPFA Caode of Practice for Internal Audit
in Local Government in the United Kingdom and reports to the Board. Internal Audit undertakes an annual
programme of work, which is reported to the Board. The Internal Auditor provides an independent opinion on
the adeqguacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control.

The Treasurer complies with the principles set out in CIPFA's Role of the Chief Financial Officer.

Continuous improvement Agenda

in 2011/2012 the following area was identified by both the Bridge Manager in the self-assessment checklists
completed as part of the Board's assurance gathering process, and by Internal Audit, where further
improvement could be made:

e Develop a formal complaints procedure (taking account of updated guidance still to be issued by the
Scottish Ombudsman's Office).

A formal complaints procedure was implemented from 30 September 2012. This can be found on the board's
website at www.tayroadbridge.co.uk/board mise.php

During 2012/2013, Internal Audit conducted their programme of audits, including a review of Data Protection
and Freedom of Information arrangements in place at the Board. This identified the following areas where

further improvements could be made:

¢ Develop a Data Protection Policy; and
+» Develop a Freedom of information Policy.

it is proposed that during 2013/2014 steps are taken to address the jtems identified in the Continuous
Improvement Agenda to further enhance the Board's governance arrangements.

The annual review demonstrates sufficient evidence that the code's principles of delivering good governance
in local government operated effectively and the Board complies with the Local Code of Corporate

Governance in all significant respects.

Marjory Stewart FCCA, CPFA lain MacKinnon

Treasurer Bridge Manager

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
XX June 2043 XX June 2013
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Board is required to prepare and publish within its Statement of Accounts an annual Remuneration
Report under the Local Authority Accounts (Scotfand) Amendment Regulations 2011 (Scottish Statutory
Instrument No. 2011/64), which came into force on 31 March 2011. The report sets out the remuneration of
the Chair and Vice-Chair and Senior Employees of the Board and accrued pension benefits of the Senior
Employees of the Board. The report also provides information on the number of Board employees {including
Senior Employees) whose total actual remuneration was £50,000 or more, this information being disclosed in
salary bandings of £5,000 above £50,000. The following report has been prepared in accordance with the
aforementioned Regulations and also in accordance with the non-statutory guidance set out in Scottish
Government Finance Circular 8/2011, issued on 13 May 2011.

The Board’s External Auditor is required to audit certain parts of the Remuneration Report and give a separate
opinion in his report on the Statement of Accounts as to whether the Remuneration Report has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Reguiations. Tables 1, 2 and 3 are subject to audit, and the remainder of the

report is subject to review.
REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

Senior Board Members
The remuneration of Councillors is regulated by the Local Governance (Scotland) Act 2004 (Remuneration)

Regulations 2007 (SSI No. 2007/183). The Regulations set out the remuneration payable to Councillors with
the responsibility of a Chair or Vice-Chair of a Joint Board. The Regulations require the remuneration to be
paid by the Council of which the Chair or Vice-Chair is a member.

The Board has an arrangement with each Council who remunerates the Chair and Vic-Chair to reimburse the
Council for the additional costs of that councillor arising from them being a Chair or Vice-Chair of the Board.
The disclosures made in this report are limited to the amounts paid to the Council by the Board for
remuneration and does not reflect the full value of the remuneration that may be paid to the councillor.

The Chair did not receive any remuneration during 2012/2013. (2011/2012: Nit remuneration). The
remuneration details for the Vice-Chair of Tay Road Bridge Joint Board are set out in Table 1.

Senior Employees
The salary of Senior Employees is set by reference to national agreements. The salaries of senior employees

of the Board take into account the duties and responsibilities of their posts. The Board is responsible for
agreeing the salaries of senior employees. All Board employees are entitled to participate in Dundee City
Council's Contract Car Hire Scheme, subject to meeting certain criteria. The Councif's Policy & Resources
Committee is responsible for agreeing the terms of the Contract Car Hire Scheme.

For the purposes of the Remuneration Report, the Regulations set out the following criteria for designation as
a Senior Employee of the Board:

(i) has responsibility for management of the Board to the extent that the person has power to direct or
control the major activities of the Board (including activities involving the expenditure of money),
during the year to which the Report relates, whether solely or collectively with other persons;

(ii) holds a post that is politically restricted by reason of section 2(1}{a), {b) or (c) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989; or

i) annual remuneration, including any remuneration from a local authority subsidiary body, is £150,000

or mare.

The Board has determined that one employee met the criteria for designation as a Senior Employee in
2012/2013, with the employee faliing into category (i) above. The remuneration details for the Senior
Employees of the Board are set out in Table 2.

The Regulations also require information to be published on the total number of Board employees (including
Senior Employees) whose total actual remuneration was £50,000 or more. This information is to be disclosed
in salary bandings of £5,000 above £50,000 and is shown in the following table.

12
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No of No of
Remuneration Bands Empiloyees Employees
. 2012/2013 2011/2012
£55,000 - £56,999 1 1
Total 1 1
EXIT PACKAGES

There were no exit packages agreed during 2012/2013 (2011/2012: No exit packages agreed).

ACCRUED PENSION BENEFITS

Pension benefits for Local Government Employees are provided through the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS). Local Government Employees pension benefits are a final salary pension scheme. This
means that pension benefits are based on the final year's pay and the number years that the person has been
a member of the scheme. The scheme’s normal retirement age for Locat Government Employees is 85.

From 1 April 2009 a five tier contribution system was introduced with contributions from scheme members
being based on how much pay falls into each tier. This is designed to give more equality between the cost
and benefits of scheme membership. Prior to 2008, contribution rates were set at 6% for all non-manual
employees. The tiers and members' contribution rates for 2012/2013 remain at the 2009/2010 rates and are
as follows:

Contribution Contribution
Whole Time Pay Rate 2012/2013 Rate 20611/2012
On earnings up to and including £18,000 5.5% 5.5%
On earnings above £18,000 and up to £22.000 7.25% 7.25%
On earnings above £22,000 and up to £30,000 8.5% 8.5%
On earnings above £30,000 and up to £40,000 9.5% 9.5%
On earnings above £40,000 12% 12%

If a person works part-time their contribution rate is worked out on the whole-time pay rate for the job, with
actual contributions paid on actual pay earned.

There is no automatic entittement to a fump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump
sum up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004. The accrual rate guarantees a pension based on 1/60" of
final pensionable salarg; and years of pensionable service. Prior to 2009 the accrual rate guaranteed a
pension based on 1/80" and a lump sum based on 3/80™ of final pensionable salary and years of pensionable

service.,

Senior Employees
The accrued pension benefits for Senior Employees are set out in Table 3, together with the pension

contributions made by the Board.

Assumptions and Contextual Information
The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which the person will

first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on account of its payment at that
age; without exercising any option to commute pension entitltment into a lump sum; and without any
adjustment for the effects of future inflation. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person
has accrued as a consequence of their total Local Government service and not just their current appointment.

In considering the accrued pension benefits figures the foflowing contextual information should be taken into
account:

{i} the figures for pension and lump sum are illustrative only in light of the assumptions set out above and
do not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual may receive upon retirement.

(ii) the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both the employer and the
scheme member have made over a period of time. [n 2012/2013, the scheme member contribution
rate for Senior Employees of the Board was 8.5% of pensionable pay. In 2012/2013, the employer
contribution rate was 18% of pensionable pay for Senior Employees.

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA

Treasurer
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
XX June 2013
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Joint Board’s responsibilities

The Joint Board is required to:

» make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Joint Board, that officer is the

Treasurer;
« manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.
« approve the Audited Statement of Accounts.
The Treasuiei’s responsibilities

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Joint Board's statement of accounts in accordance with
proper practices set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United

Kingdom (‘the Code’).
In preparing this statement of accounts, the Treasurer has:
« selected suitable accounting peiicies and then applied them consistently;

« made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

« complied with the Code of Practice.

The Treasurer has also:
« kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
« taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Staterment of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Joint Board at the
accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA

Treasurer
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
XX June 2013
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Board, analysed into 'usable
reserves’ (i.e, those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and 'unusable reserves.’ The Surplus or (Deficit) on the
Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Board's services, more details of which are shown
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staterment. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be
charged to the General Reserve Balance. The Net Increase / (Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line
shows the statutory General Reserve balance before any discretionary transfers fo or from earmarked reserves

undertaken by the Board.

Capital
General Grants Total Total
Fund Urapplied Usable Unusable Board
Balance Account Reserves Reserves Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2011 (1,161) {2,539) (3,700) (50,512} (54,212)
Movement in Reserves during 2011/12
Surplus or (deficit) on proviston of
services (9,940) - (9,940) - {9,940)
Other Comprehensive Expendilure
and Income - - - 355 355
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and
Income {9,940) - (9,940} 355 {9,585)
Adjustments between accounting basis
& funding basis under regulations (note 4} 9,840 {2,681) 7,259 (7,259) -
Net (increase) /Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves - (2,681) {2,681) (6,904) {9,585}
Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves - - - - -
(increase) / Decrease in 2011/12 - {2,681} {2,681) (6,904} (9,585)
Balance at 31 March 2012 carried
forward {1,161) (5,220) (6,381) (57,4186) (63,797)
Movement in Reserves during 2012113
Surplus or (deficit) on provision of
services (9,539) - (9,539} - {9,539)
Other Comprehensive Expenditure and
Income - - - 76 76
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and
Income {9,539) - {9,539) 76 (9,463)
Adjustments between accounting basis &
funding basis under regulations {note 4) 9,539 4,189 13,728 (13,728) -
Net (Increase) / Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves - 4,189 4,189 (13,652) (9,463)
Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves - - - - -
(Increase} / Decrease in Year - 4,189 4,189 {13,652} (9,463)
Balance at 31 March 2013 carried
forward {1,161} {1,031) {2,192) (71,068) (73,260)
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted

accounting practices.

201172012
Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income  Expenditure
/ {Income}
£000 £000 £000
1,078 - 1,078
42 - 42
275 - 275
38 - 38
141 - 141
1,453 - 1,453
22 - 22
3,049 - 3,049
- 3 3
1 {97) (96)
- (12,890) (12,890)
3,060 (12,990} (9,940)
3586 - 355
355 - 355
3,405 {12,990} {9,585)

2012/2013
Budgeted
Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Expenditure Income  Expenditure
{unaudited) 1 {lIncome)
£000 £000 £000 £000
Expenditure
Staff Costs 1,159 1,119 - 1,119
Property Costs 69 51 - 51
Supplies and Services 220 a2 - 3z1
Transport Costs 38 35 - 35
Third Party Paymenis 144 63 - 63
Depreciation & Impairment 1,559 1,569 - 1,559
gorporate and Democratic 24 24 . 21
ore

Cost Of Services 3,313 3,169 - 3,169
Other Operating Income &
Expenditure (note 5) 96 21 (116) %
Finrancing and Investment
Income and Expenditure 12 31 (32) (1)
(note 6}
Non-Specific Grant Income
(note 7) (12,979) - (12,802) (12,802)
{Surplus) or Deficit on
Provision of Services {9,558) 3,411 (12,950) {(9,539)
(note 13)
{Surplus) or deficit on 4 4 ) 4
revaluation of fixed assets
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses
on Pension Assets / 72 72 - 72
Liabilities
Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure 76 78 ) 76
Total ~ Comprehensive (9,482) 3487  (12,950) (8,463)

Income and Expenditure

17



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Board.
The net assets of the Board (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Board. Reserves are reported
in two categories. The first category is usable reserves, i.e. those that the Board may use to provide services, subject to
the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory iimitations on their use (for example the Capital
Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expendifure). The second category is unusable reserves j.e,
those that the Board is not able to use to provide services. This category includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and
losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the
assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Maovement in Reserves Statement line
‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations',

31 March
2012
£000

59,368
85

59,453

47
581
8,155

8,783

Property, Plant & Equipment
investment Property
Total Long Term Assets

Inventories
Short Term Debtors
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Current Assets

(2,367) Short Term Creditors

{2,367)

Total Current Liabilities

{2,072) NetPension Liabilities

(2,072)

63,797

6,381

57,416

63,797

Total Long Term Liabilities
Net Assets
Usable reserves

Unusable Reserves
Total Reserves

18

Note

20
19

22
23
12

24

31 March
2013
£000

73,175
62

73,237

47
35
3,404

3,488

(1,250)

{1,250}

(2,213}

(2,213)
73,260

2,192
71,068
73,260

Marjory Stewart FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
XX June 2013
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Board during the reporting period. The
statement shows How thé Board generates and use$ cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating,
investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating aclivities is a key indicator of the
extent to which the operations of the Board are funded by way of grant income or from the recipients of services provided
by the Board. Investing activities represent the extent {o which cash outflows have been made for resources which are
intended to contribute to the Board's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activilies are useful in
predicting claims on fulure cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Board.

201112 201213
£000 £000
(9,940) Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (9,539)
Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non
(954) cash movements (3,037}
Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
11,273 provision of services that are investing and financing activities 11,203
379 Net cash flows from Operating Activities (1,373}
(4,445) Investing Activities (note 10) 6,150
(13) Financing Activities (note 11) (26)
(4,079) Net {Increase) or Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 4,751
4,076 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 8,155
_ Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period
(note 12) 3,404

19



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A Generai Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Board's transactions for the 2012/2013 financial year and its position
at the year-end of 31 March 2013. The Board is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Local
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 1985. Section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003
requires that they be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2012/2013 and the Service Reporting
Code of Practice 2012/2013, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting
convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historicat cost, modified by the revaluation of certain

categories of non-current assets.

B Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity fs accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In
particular:

. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Board transfers the significant risks and rewards
of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with
the transaction will flow to the Board.

. Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Board can measure reliably the
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Board.

. Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between the date
supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

. Expenses in relation to services received (including those rendered by the Board's employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received, rather than when payments are made.

. Where revenue and expendifure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where there is evidence that debts
are unlikely to be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the

income that might not be collected.

c Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of
not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents comprise short term lending that is repayable on demand or within 3
months of the Balance Sheet date and that is readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value. [n the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Board's cash management.

b Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or when the change
provides maore reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions en the
Board's financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively by
adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years
affected by the change. Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending

opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

20
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E Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to record the cost of
holding fixed assets during the year:
. depreciation attributable o the assets used by the relevant service
. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in
the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

The Board is not required to apply revenue grant receipts to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses.
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses are therefore reversed by way of an adjusting transaction with the
Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Slatement.

F Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term employee benefits (those that fall due wholly within 12 months of the year-end), such as wages and

salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current
employees, are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render service to the Board. An
accrual is made against Staff Costs in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services for the cost of haliday
entittements and other forms of leave earned by employees but not taken before the year-end and which
employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the remuneration rates applicable
in the following financial year. Any accrual made is required under statute to be reversed out of the General
Reserve by a credit to the Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account in the Movement in

Reserves Statement.

Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Board to terminate an employee's

employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are
charged on an accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account when the Board is demonstrably committed fo either terminating the employment of an employee or group
of employees or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. Where termination benefits involve the
enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Reserve balance to be charged with the
amount payabie by the Board to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calcuiated according to
the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and crediis for termination benefits related lo pensions
enhancements and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such

amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Bengfits
Employees of the Board are members of a separate pension scheme being the Local Government Superannuation

Scheme (Tayside Superannuation Fund), a defined benefits scheme which is administered by Dundee City
Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earmed as

employees worked far the Board.

The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

* The liabilities of the Tayside Superannuation Fund attributable to the Board are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e. an assessment of the future payments
that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions
about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of earnings for current employees.

. Liabilitles are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the indicative rate
of return on high quality corporate bond, iBoxx AA rated over 15 year corporate bond index.

. The assets of the Tayside Superannuation Fund attributable to the Board are included in the Balance
Sheet at their fair value:

o quoted securities — current bid price

21



o unguoted securilies - professional estimate
© unitised securities — current bid price
o property — market value.
. The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components;

o current service cost — the increase in liahilities as result of years of service earned this year —
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to Staff Costs

© past service cost — the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect
relates to years of service eamned in earlier years —~ debited to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision
of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed
Costs

© interest cost - the expected increase in the present value of liabifities during the year as they
move one year closer to being paid — debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

o expected return on assets — the annual investment return on the fund assets atiributable to the
Board, based on an average of the expected long-term return - credited to the Financing and
investment fncome and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Incame and Expendiure
Statement

o gainsflosses on settlements and curtailments — the result of actions to relieve the Board of

liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees —

debited/credited to the Surpius/Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs

actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have

not co-incided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries

have updated their assumptions — debited to the Pensions Reserve

o contributions paid to the Tayside Superannuation Fund — cash paid as employer's contributions
to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Reserve balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Board to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calcuiated
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there
are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures
the beneficial impact on the Generai Reserve of being required fo account for retirement benefits on the basis of
cash flows rather than as benefits are eared by employees.

22
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 17 JUNE 2013

REPORT ON: EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2012/2013

REPORT BY: TREASURER
REPORT NO: TRB 10-2013
ﬁTEM No: 5

4.1

4.2

4.3

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present to the Board the External Audit Annual Audit Plan, attached as an Appendix
to this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recornmended that the Board notes the content of the External Audit Annual Audit Plan
for 2012/2013.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The cost of External Audit Services is included in the approved 2013/2014 Revenue
Budget.

MAIN TEXT

Introduction

The external audit of the Board for the financial year 2012/2013 will be carried out by Mr
Stephen Reid, Engagement Director, KPMG. The Joint Board's External Auditors are
appointed for a five year period and the financial year 2012/2013 marks the second year

of KPMG's appointment to the Board.

External Auditor's Annual Audit Plan

The External Auditor's annua! audit plan summarises the key challenges and risks facing

the Board and sets out the proposed audit work to be undertaken in 2012/2013. The

plan reflects:

* the risks and priorities facing the Board

* current national risks relevant to local circumstances

» the impact of changing international auditing and accounting standards

« External Audit's responsibilities under the Code of Practice as approved by the
Auditor General and the Accounts Commission

° Issues brought forward from previous audit reports.

External Auditor's Responsibilities

External Audit's responsibilities as independent auditor, are established by the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and the Code of Audit Practice, and guided by the
auditing profession's ethical guidance.

In carrying out their audit, External Audit seek to gain assurance that the Board:
e has good corporate governance arrangements in place which reflect the three
fundamental principles of openness, integrity and accountability

P S R T T T L CN
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4.5

+ has systems of recording and processing transactions which provide a sound basis
for the preparation of financial statements and the effective management of its assets
and interests

e prepares financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position
at 31 March 2013 and the income and expenditure for the year then ended, in
accordance with the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and other applicable
laws and regulations, including the 2012/2013 Accounting Code of Practice

« has systems of internal control which provide an adequate means of preventing or
detecting material misstatement, error, fraud or corruption

« complies with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations

« has made proper arrangements for securing best value in its use of resources.

Reporting Arrangements

Under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, there is a requirement for unaudited
financial statements to be presented to the Board and the Controller of Audit within 3
months of the financial year end i.e. 30th June. The non-statutory target for audit

completion is 30th September.

In addition to the report and audit opinion on the financial statements, an annual report
to members and the Controller of Audit will be produced to summarise all significant
matters arising from the audit. This will be presented to the Board at the meeting in

December 2013.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS
This report has been screened for any policy implications in respect of Sustainability,

Strategic Environmental Assessment, Anti-Poverty, Equality Impact Assessment and
Risk Management. There are no major issues identified.

CONSULTATIONS

The Bridge Manager and the Clerk to the Board have been consulted on the content of
this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

MARJORY M STEWART
TREASURER 4 JUNE 2013
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1. Management Summary HENDERSON LOGGIE

Introduction and Background

We have been appointed as Internal Auditors to the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board (‘the Board') for the
period 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2013. The Internal Audit Plan for 2012/2013 includes time for follow-up
work on the recommendations made in our [nternal Audit reports issued during 2011/2012. These were:

2012/02 ~ Employment Legislation and Policies, Recruitment and Staff Performance & Development;
2012/03 ~ Corporate Governance and Planning; and
2012/04 — T Network Arrangements.,

There were alsa two outstanding actions from 2010/11 and one cutstanding action from 2009/10 that
required to be followed up again this year.

Audit Scope and Objectives
The objective of our follow-up review is to assess whether recommendations made in internal audit

reports fram 2011/12 have been appropriately implemented and to ensure that, where little or no progress
has been made towards implementation, that pfans are in place to progress them.

Audit Approach

The audit approach taken was as follows:

. to request from responsible officers for each report listed above an update on the status of
implementation of the recommendations made;

. to ascertain by review of supporing documentation, for any significant recommendations within
the reports listed above, whether action undertaken has been adequate; and

. preparation of a summary of the current status of the recommendations for the Board.

Overall Conclusion

The Board has made good progress in fully implementing 10 of the 15 recommendations contained within
the internal audit reports listed above, including the three outstanding action points from the Risk
Management report issued in 2010/11 and the Corporate Governance report issued in 2009/10

The remaining five recommendations have been assessed as ‘little or no progress made’. Revised
implementation dates have been agreed for these recommendations and they will be followed up again

next year.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Draft Follow up
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1. Management Summary HENDERSON LOGGIE
From Original Reports Fram Follow-Up Work Performed
Little or .
Recommendation | Number Fully Partially No Considered
Area Grad Agreed | Implemented | Implemented | Progres but not
rades gree mplemente mplemente gress Implemented
Made
Employment Critical - - - - -
Legislation s
and Policies, Significant 2 1 - 1 -
Recruitment ) )
and Staff Routine 3 2 - 1
Performance
&
Development
Critical - - . - -
Corporate
Governance Significant 3 1 - 2 -
and Planning -
Routine - - - - -
Critical - - - _ .
IT Networlk .
Arrangements Significant 2 2 . - -
Routine 2 1 - 1 -
From 2010/11
Critical - - - - -
Risk o
Management Significant 2 2 - - -
Routine - - - - -
From 200910
Critical - - - - -
Corporate L
Govermnance Significant 1 1 - - -
Routine - - - - -
Total 15 10 - 5 -

Two actions with 'little or no progress made’ in the Employment Legislation and Policies, Recruitment
and Staff Performance & Development report are to be implemented during the 2013 annual staff

reviews,

The Corporate Governance and Planning actions that have 'little or no progress made’ are to be
implemented when the local Code of Corporate Governance is updated. It is expected that this will be

completed by 30 June 2013.

The recommendation with ‘little or no progress made’ in the |IT Network Arrangements report is to be
implemented at the next staff handbook review, which is scheduled to be compieted by the end of

2013.

Acknowledgements

We would like to thank all staff at the Board who assisted us during our review.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board ~ Draft Follow up



33

dn mojjod yeiq - paeog julor eBpug peoy Ay

'13U00S IBAIYIYM
z1L0zZ laquianag

‘PieOg 8y} 0} JUBAD]SL St )
pawatustdiuy Ajng Ag Jo wio4 uopeoiddy 1ey} os pajdepe pue pajepdn usaq aney
B30 Ul 10 MBIADI IXaU Bl SUO|II9S |lB 184} 2Insua 0} Pamalnsl
auog [ARITArANIRS uojjensuipy A ul psjeladioaw aq of o] 8q pinoys wuoy uonesidde ayy gy
S$5830.4d JUSLIIINIZOY

apey ELOC/EL/IE "13U00S IBASIIYM

ssaulfiolg oN 10 sy pasinay 2102 1aquanagg
Ag o Noogpuey yeig ooqpuey
‘SMaIAR] €107 Bulnp FANVATAT IR 1321110 3} JO M3IASI IXaU B ge)s 2yl o psjesodioour  Ajewisy
psjuawwsiduy  ag oy teubLo uonensiuwpy A Ul pajelodicow aq o) =t 24 pnoys ssao0ld malnel Yels au) zy
JUBASIDI DIOUM SHOOGPUEL 3SIAS)
pue malas) ues sabeuepy uoEnSIIWPY
apeyy eLoZ/iEL/ e S JBUl O MSIASI  JElS  jenuue
ssatfiodg oN 10 spu7 pasinay Jiay) o) yoogpuey Jey) Buuqg o) payse ag
pinoys Jeis ‘apew Bueq ale syoogpuey
‘smaiasl 1.0z Bunnp ZLO0ZZLILE 1820 MBIAZI JxaU 0] Joud eis uiyim ssiood  uswodws
psjuswaidwy  ag o} jembuo UOHEISIUIWPY A 4EiS 0] payiou aq o o) 0} sjuawpuswe ay} Jey ainsus o) 1y
$3I3]]04 0} SS322Y Jje)18
Z20~Z L0Z Muswdorana(g
'$ SoUBULIOLIA] HE]IS PUB JUSLUNNIIY
'saponiod pue uoneysibay JuswiAoduig

ajeq
€102 Iudy 1990 pasiby
1 s554B0.g :c%%wmmﬂ_aoo s(qistiodsay SIUSWIIOD apeioy UOIlEpUSUILIOS9Y

JIDDOTNOSHIANIH

@

Cli1 102 ~ ueld uonoy pajepdn °z




54

dn mojjod ye1q — pasog Juior aBpuy peoy Ae)

peuaurarduy Afn-

‘pasibe aeosay

wea | juawsbeuepy
Ag uoIsSSNoSIp
pue $5300.4
PLETTENY 10 Jed
Se 9g 0} sjuswainbar
Bupmen o Buuuery

ndu; &g osje
PInoys uaxel-al ag o} saunbal Buel
ey} salep ay) ‘ueasias siaup Bulkies
Jo uonedwos uo sseqelep suyy oy Indu
8q pjnoys asay; 'wes] Juswabeuep
abpug oy Aq |eacidde pue smansl
uels  Bumoloy psaiBe i sasinoo
Buiues usyp ‘uonewloyw Buiuey e Loy

1890 ‘Buiiesny Bupiosas oy uonea0| |enuad e epiaoid o) padojaasp
uiypim paje|dwon eLoeiziing Shjelisiuiwpy A pasn 8q 0} aseqgeleq 0 39 pinoys sseqeiep Buuren yels sy gy
"pajuswa|dwi 1o passalppe
20 PINoYs  S[98) B yomwm  seale
o} mdu; sy sepisuco o] juawsBeuew
SUl Ijgeus PINOM SIY) PUB MBIASL B
pauswaduy Appin-g 1°npuod pinos (paecg ayy o} 4eauibuy Jo
‘pieog $210 J2unsead)} juswabeuew spieog
210z 1squeldag i Jobeuepy ay} 01 ssauibug Byl o Joquiswi JuBAS|RY Y 'ssaooud
pleog sy o] ssauibug aBpug /pseog pue lamnseail "8I MBIAB) gels 8yl oul pajeiodioou
Aq uaxepepun Jsbeuepy ay U9amlag SUo|SSNOSH 39 pinoys JabBeuew obpug syl Jayaym
2bpug  Jo maney rAR\YATANINS 01 J8auibug A Bumoyjoy pasiby =l 0} se uaniBb aq pinoys uoleIAPISUOD gy
juswdoranac ye1s
(p3u03) zo~zL0Z Juswdoeray
P SOUBWIOLIDA HPIS PUR JUSWIINIZON
‘sapaijod pue uonesiBa Juswopdug
aeq
£10Z dy FEETTTe) pasaiby
18 ssaiBolg :oq_uuwm_dw_%uoo ajqisuodsey SJUSUILOY spein UoilEpUsUIIO3aY

AI0GOT NOSYIANTIH

ZLiL10T — ue|d uonoy peajepdn 'z




55

dn mo|jog yerq — pieoq Julop abpug peoy Azg

apepw SL02 aunp og ‘SIOlpNE [eulaju) pue
s5a160id ON 10 Iy pastiaay [eUIB1XD 3y wyog w sabueyo pue uejy
Aununuog ssauisng ay) Jo uoponponul
‘pajepdn 3q o} 124 sey zZ10Z ayy souis apew sabueys oy j09yed
aouewaAng ajeiodio] | lequsdaq Le labBeuepy 0} psjepdn 8q PpNOYs 8OUBULIBACG
JO apan 2207 rewbuo afipug A paziby g sjelodiog Jo 8pon |BA0| Ul 6y
pajuswaiduwy A)nyg
B0l S UBLSPNQLD)
‘210z lequisideg Usgloog  syp  wody ‘auoeld 1sat papuswwiodad siep
u  pieog oy} Ag sge|iene saliooaq 0} dn josysr yoym saunpaocosd umo sy
pajdope pue 0gds awy S0UBPING  MBU  UDYM dojaasp pue sainpasoid spuejdutods o)
Ag pasiopus ‘pasedad FAN A Jafeuep padojaasp  a3g |m uoneias Ui souepinb paiepdn jo swooino
ainpasoxd  suepdwon Jequieidag | abpug A ampasosd spaedwon g S} Jojuow pinous preog Syl Y
spely | £L0Z aunp Qg
ssaufoilg oN 10 o pasiaayf '$31pOg JAUIC YA s2Y pleog auyl jeu)
sdiysuonelas pue sdiysmeuped Asy ay)
"ussaud 1e papnpoul 2102 SBUIUSPI Yaiym uoljoas e (ueld adlnag
jou sdysuoneal | Jequiasaq ie 1aBeuepy J0) 8auewLan0D sleiodion jo 8pon
pue sdiysisuped Aay rewbug asbpug A g B4l UIYiM apnpoul pinoys pleog auyy, £y
asueLIBA0D ateiodios
£0~ZL0Z
Buiuuelg pue asuewisrog ajelodion
ajeq
um w%mwwﬂmw& :o_wuwhw%qco al n.“.wmwwom ay pasiby sjuawwmon apesn) UOREPUSIWIOI Y

AFD0OTNOSYIANIH

D

£

CLIL10Z — ue|d uonoy pajepdn ‘z




56

dn moyjo4 yeiq ~ pieoq unop a6puig peoy Aey

pajuswrerduy Afpny

‘pasibe se ‘wWooy
Janeg Sl 0} SIoUSIA
Aq pemoje  ssa0e
paiuedwosoeun oN

“320] J00p UCHEUIqUIOD
Aq pa|joJuoa
Bty UNLDY O] SS800Yy

‘Rep
B sinoy 4z peidnaoo
Buiag Bupging

a8y} aydsap aqssod
S| Bale Sy} 0} S$a00B
pasioyineun ou oS
pauliE|e pue paxaol si
33O UIWpY 3y sInoy
aoijo [BULIOL UIMING
uopount Uwpy 8w
jo sped J8yjo Jo) pasn
S Wool 8yl eyl 10e)
2y} Os|e pue sSanss
|joJjuon ainieladuus)
0} snp loop
WooH J3A1ag 3yl 320]
o} sqesnoend ou st
‘Baly Jaalag o) Buipes)
lopuioa 0}  ssaooe
pasuoyineun  juaaald
0} 2077 epon Buisn

'$53008 Jo Bulojuow 2y} pue
sabueyo yeys s|puey o} psjuswsiduy
80 0O} pPasu  sSS3230B  I9AC  SJONU0D
‘aseid o Ind s1 washs  1BASUINUAA
SPJED  $S300B  OJUONOB|S  pue 300
8poo apnjou suoldQ "pajjosuod Ajisea
80 UBD y2UM WOl JoAIDS aU) 0} $sa00e

-a)jep laBeuepy payNoo] aq [ SAUUO BuiueB Joy waysAs Ajus |jgqepns B
psaibe Aq peisidwon z102M%/a sbpug A ujwpy 0} 1oop |BuIsiuj o) Buyeisul Jopisuos pinoys pieog au) 1M
S]0.U07) [EJUBLIUONAUT pUE [BIISAYd
PO~Z LOZ SluautabueLiy YI0MIaN 1]
€102 Inidy uol Mumwho 199140 paaiby usawo apes UOREPUBWIIOS
1e ssaiboiyg %mm_z By J siqisuodsay S¥ 0 PEID Rep d

HSIDDCT NOSYEANIH

CLi110Z — ue|d uonoy pajepdn g




57

dn mojjod yeiq - preog uiop abpug peoy Aey

ueid ay;
30 uoielusws|dw Buunp pajoejucs ag
pajustuapduiy Afpny O} ainbas pinom ysiym sajped pay) Jje jo
laBeuepy SI{EJ9P JOBIUOS aY} apnjoul o) pajepdn aq
'auoQ ZL0Z/PI0S abpug A paaify g PInoys ueld Aranooay eisesig syl 6y
[eisuacy
apew ‘uopdAious eleg 1|
ssaifiord op 10 apuy pue
‘Syiompau Ayed paiyy 0 uoposuuony |
RANATAN IR ‘$BOIABP 3U] Jo AluNnoag 1]
Aq 3)9|dwos eLocigL/Le 19A02 pinoys siy 1 Bupnduied ajgow
ag im  joogpuey Ppasiray o uopdope su Jsenoiped ur ‘uoyesado
10 MBIAD) tofew) NoogpueH yels jo 1i suns spiecg oy sjosyss Apedord
B pue Bumuooypoy ZLOZIZLILE JeBeuep MBIA2] 1XauU Je pajepdn 3 |Iinsue o} pamainal ag pinoys Aoyod
sapoljod MaN reutbro abpug A aq M siy ~ pasiBy 2 sapmoey Bugndwop jo asn syl py
Aaljog asn sigerdeooy
‘paseyaind st uswdinbs mau
paustreyduiy Ajjng JBA3UBYM palepdn g plnoys vig ayl
‘preOg 3y Aq asn ul swaysAs Bupesado
€102 Judy sAloEXg pue Juawdmbe |) |12 sepnpw )1 sinsus
} uo Buleq o swed 1sbeueyy Uim uoneynsuos 0} pajepdn 8q pjnoys sAncexy ymm
pue psaibe g men Z10zZ/6/0E abpug A ul psjepdn 29 M VIS g (v1S) wewsaiby jers so1nsg a1 Zy
B3INMONRSBIUF YIOMIBN
{(p,yuos)
PO~Z1L0Z Sjuswsbuelly NJompaN ||
ajeqg
£107 udy 199140 paaiby
16 ssaiboig :o%mwm_hm:,xou ajqisucdsay sjuawIwon apeln UOJIEPUBUHLOISY

SIODOT NOSYIANIH

/1102 — ue|d uonoy pajepdn ‘'z



58

dn mofo4 Besg — pieog o abpug peoy Ael

“Hodal oy uiyim pajielap aq pinoys
ainjonnsenur abpug ay) o) abewep
pojuswerdiuy Ajjeipied io} 18A0D 3Y) Jjo s|ewd  pleog
3y} o] poday 23uemSsy| |Enuuy
pajuatuaduy Ayny ‘SS3IpPE {Im plecg oy uw soejd W JSA0D  BDUBINSU
Z10zg sunp sy} o) of L102/8/LE sy} jnoge |Ejap slow  Buipnpul
auoq | o0} saousIinsy| uo Jiodsy jeutbrio Jainseal} A a lapisuos pinoys juawabeuey ¢y
aaueinsuy
‘(26uByD SIOUBISWNDIAD USYM
Bugepdn aanbas pue Asesodws)
og Aew Jt jey) yieqie ‘ueld4 Anuguos
apeiy ssausng aul w0 xipuaddy
ssaib0.14 ON 10 31317 je ueld ARA0DSY Issesig syl ul
pajuawsrduwiy Afin- UoISTjoUl J0 ) "S|QBIEABUN S0
"Z10T 40 pus Ag Auadoid umo s pigog auyl 1BY) uaas
‘aoeds MIIAD] JXBU J0) BUH] UL Ayl Ul UOHEPOWLIONIE aAljeuls)e
aoyo  ws)  poys | Ino sy Aues o} ssodold 21eudoidde o uonelapisuoD
Buipiebs) [lellfgleTg] ‘UOlBpOLIIOIDE ayuny uejd Aunuiguon  ssauisng
A0 espung  ypm annewale BuAmuap LLOZ/ZLILE labeuep 58U} 0 ayepdn pue MmalAal jBnUUE ay)
payoeas juswaalby uo ssalboid oN reutBiio abpug A =] URuIM sapnpow Juswsbeuepy Y
uels AUNURILOD SSaUIsng
L0~1 40T wowabeuep sy
£1L0Z ZL0Z Youey Wty om0 | peaiby
11dy 32 ssasfoly je ssaibold :o%%wm%q 02 ajqisuodsay Sjuatiiog 9pelD UOREPUSWILIOITY

A0 NOSYIANEH

@

LL/010Z — uejd uonoy pajepdn ‘¢




99

dn mofjo yerq — preog Juior abpug peoy Ae)

pajusiuaduy
Anng

RANTA
aunr asuIs aysqeMm

uo pajsed pue

pajuatsdiy
Anenteq

*3)s gam pieog
3y jo Juawdojaaap
Buiob-uc ay; jo ped
SE panuijuod aq M

PUE | 10T t1aquaaa(]
30uls aoejd ui

uaaq sey a)s gqsm oy}
uo sbBunaaw plreog

10 snuiw jo Bunsog
"ZLOZ udy enp

BaJE SIY) Ul ouepInG
paiepdn jo aseajal ayy

Buimeme juswabeuety

Q] anp ainpasold
sjuejdwos [euuo;
E jo uonejuatus|dun

“SOUBUISACD)
ajelodion

10 9poD) 2207

& 10 Juawidojanap
ERHCHI
uonaunfuco u
‘sainpasoad pue
saonoeld Jusing
10 UojjBUILEXS

‘Blsgam ay)
uo sBupsaw jo ssinuiw Buysod sepisuos
pue soue||dwod uou Jo eale 9y} ssaippe o}
ainpaoosd sjuedwos jewlo) & dn 1os osje
PIROYs pieog 3l ] N0 PSLIED SI2 SMAIASI
usym alep aul ypmm pajejouue aq pjnoys
SjUBWNo0g “UolEUSWNDCP BEp 10 N0

ay) Uo SVUBULLIOD rANITA [ayum ‘a|qes)|dde aseym ‘Buisiasl pue Buimasinzs
passnosip siaded 0} 3194 sey wopa | yasepy  Le 0} }a3lgns ag jim pue  ueld Apnuguod  ssauisng  yesp
pue sBunaspy pasinay juendwon A)jeed 341 jo uopisidwos spnjoul pinoys uaxe; aq
pieog jo saynuny 0102 tequsidag ¢ SE payiuspl sway 0} SaUNSESYy ‘passalppe sle esuedwod
uo pieog 10 v Xipuaddy feded jo sesie ay] Jey) aunsua pinoys
Z2L0Z lsquisydag 8y} Ag paacidde L10Z Jo sBuipui #ess ‘sonoeid 1s8q M Buy U are pieog
pajdope amnpsooud ue|d yaew Lg Jabeuepy 8y o} Bune|es 3y} Aq pajesado sjuswabuele asueuianob
sjutedwion jeunc Aunuiuos ssausny jeurbruo abpug S9A suolor Auy g 9jelodiod 2y} Jey) aInsua 0] 1@pio uj Ay
£102 [dy Z10Z yose ey 19910 pasiBy
1e sssibBoig 1€ ssalboly :o%%..u._%qo J s|qisuodsay Sjusiiog SPEID uonEpUsWWOISY

AOOOT NOSYIANIH
&

01L/600¢2 — ueld uonoy pajepdn ‘¢




60

HENDERSON & e

Chartered Accountants

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

Delivery of Major Project — Pier Protection Works
2012113

Internal Audit Report No: 2013/05

Draft issued: 10 May 2013

Final Issued: 15 May 2013



&

Contents HENDERSON LOGGIE
Page No.
Section 1 Management Summary
. introduction 1
. Scope of the Audit 1
. Objective of the Audit 1
. Audit Approach 1
. Action Plan 2
. Overall Conclusion 2
. Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations 2-3
. Acknowledgements 3
Section 2 Action Plan 4
Appendixi Comparison with the OGC Gateway 5 Review: Operations Review 5-17

and Benefits Realisation

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Delivery of Major Project; Pier Protection Works



.

1. Management Summary HENDERSON LOGGIE

Introduction

As part of the Internal Audit programme at the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board (‘the Board’) for
2012/13, we carried out a review of the arrangements in place in relation to the delivery of the
major project, Pier Collision Protection Works. Qur Audit Needs Assessment, finalised in April
2011, identified this as an area where risk can arise and where Internal Audit can assist in
providing assurances to the Board and management that the related control environment is
operating effectively, ensuring risk is maintained at an acceptable level.

In March 2012 the Board commissioned VolkerStevin Marine to begin work on the second
phase of the £15 million Tay Road Bridge Pier Collision Protection Scheme to ensure the bridge
is not at risk of lengthy closure due to a serious ship impact at the navigation spans. During its
45 year life span the Tay Road Bridge has been hit three times by shipping, each time causing
superficial damage. These works will protect the bridge from a full impact, which could result in
long term bridge closure and in turn cost the local economy an estimated £680 million.

Scope of the Audit

The Pier Protection project is a major capital project of considerable size and materiai
investment for the Board. We agreed with the Bridge Manager and the Proper officer to
undertake a ‘Gateway' type review of how well this project has been managed to date

compared to ‘best practice’.

This audit used key questions included in the OGC's Operations Review and Benefits
Realisation to assess whether this project has been effectively managed and delivered on time
and within budget and has achieved the stated benefits set out in the initial business case. The
scope also included a review of the project’s governance arrangements in place at the Board.

The systems and controls were reviewed as part of the mitigating actions identified for the
following risks noted in the Board's register;

¢ 4 - Risk associated with loss of structurefoperational capacity through ship impact.
Inherent risk: Moderate, Residual risk: Moderate.

Objective of the Audit

The overall objective was to review delivery of this project to date compared with ‘best practice’
as defined in OGC's Operations Review and Benefits Realisation and provide assurance to the
Board that the governance arrangements in place are effective and adequate.

Audit Approach

The project’s business case, plans and tender process together with other relevant
documentation, including progress monitoring reparts and reports to the Board were reviewed
and benchmarked against current best practice using the OGC’s Operations Review and
Benefits Realisation as a guide. From discussion with management we assessed progress with
the project to date and assessed reasonableness of completion targets. We examined the
estimated project costs against actual costs to date and reviewed estimated costs to
completion. We sought to undertake this through review of specific project plans and budgets,
other decuments and discussion with key staff, including the Engineer to the Board to ensure
that they covered all aspects currently recommended by best practice.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Delivery of Major Project: Pier Protection Works 1
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1. Management Summary HENDERSON LOGGIE

Action Plan

This report sets out one improvement action, which we consider necessary to ensure efficient
delivery of the objective which is discussed within the text for clarity. An action plan for
implementation of the recommendation can be found at Section 2 of this report.

To aid the use of the action plan, our recommendation has been graded to denote the level of
importance that should be given to each one. These gradings are as follows:

A tssues which require the consideration of the Joint Board or one of its committees.
B Significant matters that the Bridge Manager can resolve.
C Less significant matters, which do not require urgent attention but which shouid be

followed up within a reasonable timescale.

Overall Conclusion

The evidence provided demonstrates that this project was effectively managed and delivered
on time and within budget and has achieved the stated benefits set out in the initial business
case. We also concluded that good project governance arrangements were in place at the

Board.

The results of the assessment of the tailored OGC Gateway questions are contained within
Appendix |.  Three areas have been highlighted for which we have raigsed a single
recommendation that has been incfuded in our action plan on page four. Although we have
concluded that overall the project was effectively managed there is a need for the Board fo
conduct a formal post project review to:

. implement an effective process for embedding improvements based on lessons
learned from the project;

. reflect and assess how well the project was managed from an internal perspective;
and

. identify any major issues with the Canfractor that could affect the Board’s approach to

competition for future projects.

Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations

Stakeholder commitment which was essential to the viability of the project was obtained prior
to the commencement of the construction phase. This included buy-in from; Transport
Scotland; local authorities; Scottish Natural Heritage; Dundee Port; and River Tay Pilots

Association.

Continuous improvement was identified as a core objective of the project to identify and
implement measures to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the way in which the
scheme was designed and constructed. Central fo this concept was a process of analysis and
review against targets and the use of benchmarking to compare current performance against
best practice both within the project and the wider industry. Our discussions with the Bridge
Manager and staff from the Engineer to the Board's department noted that they are happy with
the overall performance of the Contractor and outcome of the project with initial objectives
being satisfactorily met and in some cases exceeded.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - Delivery of Major Project: Pier Protection Works 2
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Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations (continued)

The project was completed two months ahead of schedule and approximately £1.3m below
budget. Early Contractor involvement in the project has been viewed by Board staff as a
significant factor in obtaining value for money as this enabled the Contractor to make
procurement and programme arrangements in order to take maximum advantage of discounts
or offers available. It also allowed the Contractor the opportunity to plan its business well in
advance when compared to a conventional tendering process.

involvement of the Contractor during the design development also assisted in the ‘buildability’
of the project, A number of examples were highlighted during the course of the project which
demonstrated that the Contractor utilised cost effective consfruction methods and the design
changes needed to accommaodate them. For instance, the Contractor was able to determine
that much shorter piles could be incorporated into the design of the build resulting in significant

cost savings.

The parinering environment of the project was influential in creating an atmosphere of
ownership for both the Board and Contractor alike. This positive environment assisted in the
problem solving process making the development of solutions less confrontational, minimising
conflict and so reducing inefficient and wasteful actions.

The project was completed in December 2012 and a formal post project review has yet to be
conducted. However, the Engineer to the Board, assisted by the Bridge Manager plan to

undertake this review later in 2013.
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Introduction

As part of the Internal Audit programme at the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board ('the Board’) for
2012113, we carried out a review of the arrangements in place in relation to Physical Security of
Asseis and Asset Management. Qur Audit Needs Assessment, finalised in April 2011, identified
these as areas where risk can arise and where Internal Audit can assist in providing assurances
to the Board and management that the related control environment is operating effectively,

ensuring risk is maintained at an acceptable level.

The Bridge Manager is responsible for maintaining proper security at all times for all buildings,
stock, stores, furniture, equipment, cash and records under his control. The Bridge Manager
shall consult with the Treasurer in any case where security is thought to be defective or where it
is considered that special security arrangements are needed.

The Board's asset requirements for the forthcoming year are identified during the development
and review of the 20 year capital programme. This process is informed largely by the results of
on-going asset inspections and condition surveys. The Board’s Financial Regulations stipulate
that capital expenditure proposals must be discussed with the Treasurer prior to the submission

to the Board.

The Board's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 include fixed assets with a
total net book value of £59,368Kk, which includes; Land & Buildings of £1,216k; Vehicles, Plant
and Equipment of £455k; Infrastructure Assets of £57,228k; and Assets Under Construction of
£460k. The financial statements also include an additional £47k of maintenance materials held

as stock.

Scope of the Audit

We reviewed the processes and controls in place for the purchase, disposal and maintenance
of fixed assets. This included property and plant and equipment. ICT assets were also covered
by this review. As we plan to carry out a separate review of major capital projects later this year
the pier protection works have not been covered.

The systems and controls reviewed are part of the mitigating actions identified for the following
risks noted in the Board's register:

s 5 - Risk associated with loss of structurefoperational capacity through effects of Dundee
City Waterfront Development Works. Inherent risk: Moderate, Residual risk: Moderate;

s 6 - Risk associated with loss of operational capability through loss of bridge/buildings.
Inherent risk: Moderate, Residual risk: Minor;

Risk 4 on the register associated with loss of structure/operational capacity through ship impact
has not been considered during this review as this will be covered by a separate review
conducted as part of the 2012/13 audit programme.

Objectives of the Audit

Physical Security
The objective of our audit was to obtain reasonable assurance that systems are in place to

ensure that responsibilities for controlling the physical security of assets are clearly defined and
adequate precautions exist to ensure that assets are held securely.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Physical Security and Asset Management 1
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Objectives of the Audit (continued)

Management of Fixed Assets
The main objectives of this audit were to ensure that:

management has an accurate record of its capitalised assets;

asset registers and inventories are kept up-to-date through reqular, accurate and timely
reporting of acquisitions, transfers and disposals;

there is a periodic exercise fo verify the accuracy of the registers;

relevant assets can be identified through use of security tags and correct asset
numbering;

there is adequate scrutiny of pians for the acquisition of new assets and the decision to
purchase or lease;

maintenance contracts in place for plant and equipment offer value for money;

plant and equipment is subject to regular health and safety testing and, where
appropriate, is risk assessed by a suitably competent person; and

IT assets are disposed of securely.

Audit Approach

Interviews were held with relevant Tay Road Bridge staff to assist in documenting the systems
and processes in place. A detailed assessment of the key internal controls was performed and
an audit testing programme devised thereon. Detailed compliance and substantive tests were

then carried out.

Action Plan

This report sets out detailed improvement actions, which we consider necessary to ensure
efficient delivery of each objective and these are discussed within the text for clarity. An
action plan for implementation of these recommendations can be found at Section 2 of this

report.

To aid the use of the action plan, our recommendations have been graded to denote the level
of importance that should be given to each one. These gradings are as follows:

A

B

issues which require the consideration of the Joint Board or one of its committees.

Significant matters that the Bridge Manager can resolve.

Less significant matters, which do not require urgent attention but which should be
followed up within a reasonable timescale.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Physical Security and Asset Management 2
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Overall Conclusion

In reiation to our specific audit objectives we found that:

Physical Security
. responsibilities for controlling the physical security of assets are clearly defined and
precautions exist to ensure that assets are held securely.

Management of Fixed Assets

. the Board has an accurate record of its capitalised assets although a decision needs to
be made on the protocol for assets to be included on the portable assets inventory;
. asset registers and inventories are kept up-to-date through regular, accurate and timely

reporting of acquisitions, however duplication of inventories records was identified and
action is required to rationalise these and processes can be improved in relation to the

authorisation and recording of disposais;

. there is a periodic exercise to verify the accuracy of the fixed asset register although
consideration should be given to implementing a procedure for recording asset
transfers;

. with the exception of large plant and vehicles, assets, specifically inventory items,

cannot be identified through use of security tags and asset numbering. A standard
method of tagging assels and inventory items should be adopted to enable the
identification of Board assets and prevent loss from theft;

. there is adequate scrutiny of plans for the acquisition of new assets;

. there is sufficient information available to confirm that maintenance contracts in place
for plant and equipment offer value for money although due to the specialist nature of
the Board’s operations sometimes the Board is tied into a maintenance contract with the
supplier they originally purchased the asset from, or there may be a limited number of
suppliers, Whilst this makes it difficult for the Board to receive competitive tenders or
quotes for all maintenance, wherever possible quotes or tenders are obtained for
maintenance services thereby ensuring value for money is achieved;

. plant and equipment is subject o regular heaith and safety testing and, where
appropriate, is risk assessed by a suitably competent person; and
. IT assets are disposed of securely.

Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations

In order to mitigate the risks faced by the redevelopment of the waterfront area the Board has
ensured that insurance cover is adequate by entering into an Asset Protection Agreement with
Dundee City Council which provides additional insurance cover over the bridge approaches
should they be damaged during the development works. In relation to the responsibilities of
ensuring that the Board's assets are adequately protected we consider this to be an example

of good practice in this area.

The Maintenance Supervisor is responsible for maintaining and updating the record of plant
and equipment used by maintenance staff, however from discussion with staff we identified
that the Admin Assistant also has access to a separate Plant and Equipment register which
she updates with acquisitions and disposals. Our review noted that these registers vary in
composition and size which appears to have resulted from confusion as to who should
assume responsibility for updating the register. An additional inventory of minor furniture and
equipment assets is also maintained which our review noted contains many items which are
insignificant in terms of monetary value and which appear to be consumables rather than

assets.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Physical Security and Asset Management 3
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Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations (continued)

The Maintenance Supervisor should undertake an exercise to reconcile both Plant and
Equipment registers that are in use. Consideration should alsc be given to rationalising
existing inventories further by combining the Plant and Equipment register with the minor
furniture and equipment inventory. Once completed both the Admin Assistant and
Maintenance Supervisor should ensure that a final register is agreed and determine
responsibility for maintaining it going forward.

Procedures and controls for disposing of assets were discussed with staff and we noted that
there are no records kept of the approval of asset disposals or where assets are scrapped as
approval is given verbally. Controls in this area could be strengthened by implementing an

‘Authority for Disposal / Scrap’ form.

As part of the testing we checked a sample of assets to ensure that each had been tagged
with a unique asset number in line with the Board’s procedures and which correlated to the
Board's asset records. In all cases tested we did not identify any evidence that assets had
been tagged. Assets subject to regular PAT testing are tagged with evidence of testing which
is clearly visible in the form of "passed" and "tested for electrical safety" labels affixed to
various parts of the electrical equipment used. Other than items subject to PAT testing there is
no method for tagging assets in use and consideration should be given to introducing a

standard method of tagging assets.

We reviewed all maintenance contracts in place and identified that the contract for the
maintenance of the lift on the bridge had expired by one week and had not yet been renewed.
At the time of our review the Bridge Manager acknowledged that this had been an oversight
but had taken action to address the issue and had requested quotations from suppliers in
order that a new agreement could be put in place as soon as possible. The breakdown of key
assets not covered by maintenance contracts may result in disruption to Board operations and
expensive repair bills. We recommend that a register of maintenance contracts, including their
renewal date, should be maintained. This should be reviewed regulariy to identify contracts
approaching their expiry date so that renewal can be considered and take place if required.

As part of the Board’s Asset management planning process a new Asset Management Plan
and Lifecycle Plan was developed by management and approved by the Joint Board in
September 2012. Asset Management is the process whereby an organisation sets out the
procedures and programmes by which it intends to prioritise maintenance and manage its
collective assets. By adopting the principle of Asset Management the Board aims to
demonstrate best value in maintaining its assets, principally the Tay Road Bridge.

The Asset Management Plan has been prepared in accordance with the guidance issued by
the Society of Chief Officers on Transportation in Scotland (SCOTS) which has been adopted

by all 32 of Scotland's Local Authorities.

Acknowledgements
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Main Report HENDERSON LOGGIE

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

21

2.2

Physical Security

We visited the Board's Office and maintenance facilities situated at the Tay Road Bridge in
Dundee and also the bridge and considered the security of each site. We considered aspects
of security such as ease of access to site, controls within the site and arrangements for
monitoring the site out of normal office hours.

Assets not in use tend to be held within locked rooms and buildings, staff areas are generally
secured by access codes and there is CCTV in operation at the head office, on the bridge and
its approaches. We therefore concluded that physical security at the bridge appears adequate.

The bridge approaches and surrounding areas are currently undergoing major redevelopment
as part of Dundee City Council’s (DCC) Waterfront Development Works with work scheduled
to continue for several years. This level of activity and the associated disruption that it brings
increases the risk to the security of the Board's assets. Our review noted that various
procedures are in place to ensure assets are secure.

As detailed in the Board’s Financial Regulations the Bridge Manager, in conjunction with the
Treasurer, shall ensure that the risks faced by the Board are identified and effective measures
are taken to insure against them, including protection from theft, loss or damage. Due to the
scale of the Waterfront Development Works the risk of damage to the bridge ramps resulting
in a loss of structure or operational capacity has been identified as a major risk on the Board's
risk register. In order to mitigate the risks faced by the redevelopment of the waterfront area
the Board has ensured that insurance cover is adequate. In addition the Board has entered
into an Asset Protection Agreement with DCC which provides additional insurance cover over
the bridge approaches should they be damaged during the development works.

The Bridge Manager is in regular discussions with the City Engineer and contractors involved
in the Waterfront Development Works and is involved in the decision making process
regarding construction work on the bridge approaches and surrounding areas.

Asset Records

Assels
A list of major capitalised fixed assets is detailed within the Board's Fixed Asset Register

(FAR), which is held by and updated by Dundee City Council (DCC) on a monthly basis under
a Service Level Agreement (SLA). The Board's FAR is maintained in accordance with DCC's
Financial Regulations with assets costing £6,000 or more, inclusive of irrecoverable value
added tax, capitalised. When such assets are purchased they will be coded to a fixed asset
account in the General Ledger by a member of DCC's Finance Team.,

inventory
The Board's Admin Assistant maintains an asset inventory detailing all of the Board's portable

furniture and equipment assets which cost less than £6,000 that are not included on the FAR
maintained by DCC. This includes Information Technology (IT) equipment. A separate record
of plant and equipment used by maintenance staff is also maintained by the Board's
Maintenance Supervisor. The Maintenance Supervisor also maintains a record of all portable
electrical appliances which are subject to regular portable appliance testing (PAT) as required
by Health & Safety legislation.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Physical Security and Asset Management 8
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2.3

3.1

3.2

Asset Records (continued)

Observations

The Maintenance Supervisor is responsible for maintaining and updating the record of plant
and equipment used by maintenance staff, however from discussion with staff we identified
that the Admin Assistant also has access to a separate Plant and Equipment register which
she updates with acquisitions and disposals. Our review noted that these registers vary in
composition and size which appears to have resulted from confusion as to who should

assume responsibility for updating the register.

An additional inventory of minor furniture and equipment assets is also maintained which our
review noted contains many items which are insignificant in terms of monetary vatue and
which appear to be consumables rather than assets, e.g. items noted as having a cost of less
than five pounds such as cutlery sets and clocks.

Risk
Adequate control is not being made over the Board’s record of assets held, increasing the risk
that items may be lost or stolen.

Recommendations
R1 The Maintenance Supervisor should undertake an exercise to reconcile both Plant

and Equipment registers that are in use. Consideration should also be given to rationalising
existing inventories further by combining the Plant and Equipment register with the minor
furniture and equipment inventory. Once completed both the Admin Assistant and
Maintenance Supervisor should ensure that a final register is agreed and determine
responsibility for maintaining it going forward.

R2 As part of the rationalisation of inventories detailed at R1 the Board should determine
a protocol for items to be included on the inventory. For example, furniture and equipment in
excess of £250 plus all items >£0 where a) the item will be used outside the Board's premises;
or b) the item is portable e.g. camera; or c) the item will require to be Portable Appliance
Tested (PAT). Any items identified below this level should be deemed consumables and

removed.

Benefit
There will be improved control over the Board's assets.

Timely Reporting of Acquisitions, Transfers and Disposals

As part of our audit testing we identified that only four asset acquisitions were made in the
year. We selected all four items and successfully traced to the Board's asset records.

Observation
During interviews held with the Bridge Manager it was noted that there had been no

capitalised assets disposed of in the current financial year. As a result we did not perform any
detailed testing of asset disposals although procedures were documented where we noted
that there are no records kept of the approval of asset disposals or where assets are
scrapped. Assets which are disposed of or scrapped are approved verbally by the Bridge
Manager or Maintenance Supervisor. The Admin Assistant is then notified ta update the asset

records.

Risk
Assets are disposed / scrapped without proper authorisation.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board ~ Physical Security and Asset Management g
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3. Timely Reporting of Acquisitions, Transfers and Disposals (continued)

3.2 (continued)
Recommendation
R3 Controls could be further improved by implementing an ‘Authority for Disposal / Scrap’
form which could he completed and authorised by the Bridge Manager / Maintenance
Supervisor. The form should record details of the asset disposed / scrapped, including asset
reference and the reason for this. Copies of authorised forms should then be passed to DCC
to ensure that the FAR for major fixed assets is also updated and to calculate any gain / loss
on disposal. Details of disposals should also be used to update the PAT database where
necessary.
Benefit
There will be improved control over the Board's assets.

4, Verification Exercises

4.1 Board employees physically verify assets on a periodic basis. Once a year the Admin Assistant
and Maintenance Technician select a sample of assets from asset records and confirm that the
assets are still in use and at the location as stated on the records. In addition, a member of the
DCC finance team will undertake physical verification of major fixed assets as held on the FAR
maintained by DCC.

4.2 Observation
As part of our audit testing we selected 10 assets from the Board’s asset records and
physically verified these, then selected a further 10 from observation and traced to asset
records. During our physical verification testing one asset was selected from the asset
records, which could not be fraced to the location where the records noted the asset as being
held. Further discussion with staff identified that the asset had been relocated from the
workshop to the Board's safety boat without asset records being updated.
Risk
Asset records maintained are not up-to-date.
Recommendation
R4 Consideration should be given ta implementing a procedurs for asset movements to
ensure movements are authorised appropriately and the individuals responsible for
maintaining asset records are notified as soon as practicable to ensure that the asset location
is updated.
Benefit
Asset records will be up-to-date.

5. Asset Identification

5.1 There are several methods used by the Board for identifying assets. The Board's procedures

require that assets are tagged to show that they are the property of the Board with a unique
asset number which correlates with the asset records. Motor vehicles are easily identified by

their registration number.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Physical Securitly and Asset Management 10
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5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Asset Identification (continued)

Observation
As part of the testing carried out to physically verify a sample of 20 assets we alsa checked

each asset to ensure that it had been tagged with its unique asset number in line with the
Board's procedures and which correlated to the Board's asset records. In all cases tested we
did not identify any evidence that assets had been tagged.

Portable appliance testing (PAT) is a statutory requirement in the United Kingdom by which
electrical appliances are routinely checked for safety. Evidence of testing is clearly visible in
the form of "passed" and “tested for electrical safety" labels affixed to various parts of the
electrical equipment used. Whilst some assets can be identified by their PAT number there
may be no means of identifying assets which are not subject to PAT, other than by the
description of the asset. Other than items subject to PAT testing there is no method for tagging

assets in use.

Risk
The Board's procedures for identifying assets are not being applied.

Recormmendation
RS Consideration should be given to infroducing a standard method of tagging assets.

Further consideration should also be given to the assets on the new combined asset register/
inventory recommended at R1 when deciding which assets require to be tagged.

Benefit
A standard procedure is adopted for identifying assets which allow assets to be easily

recognised.

Acquisitions

The Board's asset requirements for the forthcoming year are identified during the annual
development and review of the 20 year capital programme. This process is informed fargely
by the results of on-going asset inspections and condition surveys. The Board's Financial
Regulations stipulate that capital expenditure proposals must be discussed with the Treasurer

prior to submission to the Board,

There are authorisation levels set for Board purchases. Purchases up to £500 can be
authorised by the Admin Assistant and Maintenance Technician. in the Bridge Manager's
absence the Maintenance Supervisor and Admin Officer can authorise purchases up to
£5,000. The Bridge Manager has an unlimited authorisation level however purchases in
excess of £10,000 must be notified to the Clerk to the Board for Board approval.

Although not part of recognised procurement consortia the Board generally achieves value for
meney by making use of discounts which are available to DGC.

The option to lease assets was discussed during our meetings with staff. At present the Board
does not lease any assets as it has cash available through capital grant funding to purchase

assets outright.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - Physical Security and Asset Management 1
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71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Maintenance Conftracts

As part of the Board's Asset management planning process a new Asset Management Plan
and Lifecycle Plan was developed by management and approved by the Joint Board in
September 2012. Asset Management is the process whereby an organisation sets out the
procedures and programmes by which it intends to prioritise maintenance and manage ifs
collective assets. By adopting the principle of Asset Management the Board aims to
demonstrate best value in maintaining its assets, principally the Tay Road Bridge.

The Asset Management Plan has been prepared in accordance with the guidance issued by
the Society of Chief Officers on Transporiation in Scotland (SCOTS) which has been adopted

by all 32 of Scotland's Local Authorities.

The Board has a five year inspection programme for planned maintenance which it reviews
and updates annually. The programme details work that is required to be carried out, when it
will be carried out and whether the work shall be conducted by the Board’s in-house team or
contracted out to an external organisation.

Maintenance contracts are entered into o manage the risk of deterioration and breakdown of
some assefs. The Bridge Manager and Maintenance Supervisor negotiate and co-ordinate
external service contracts for major items of equipment and systems such as air conditioning,
lifts, IT equipment and short range radios. Maintenance work is also performed in-house. The
Board maintains a record of the plant and equipment it is responsible for maintaining. The
records note the frequency of inspection and whether this is carried out in-house or by a

contractor,

Sometimes the Board is tied into a maintenance contract with the supplier they originally
purchased the asset from, or there may be a limited number of suppliers. Whilst this makes it
difficult for the Board to receive competitive tenders or quotes for all maintenance, wherever
possible guotes or tenders are obtained for maintenance services thereby ensuring value for

maoney is achieved.

Observation
We reviewed all maintenance contracts in place at the Board and identified that the contract

for the maintenance of the lift on the bridge had expired by one week and had not yet been
renewed. At the time of our review the Bridge Manager acknowledged that this had been an
oversight but had taken action to address the issue and had requested guotations from
suppliers in order that a new agreement could be put in place as soon as possible.

Risk
Breakdown of key assets which could resuit in disruption to operations and expensive repair
bills.

Recommendations
R6 A register of maintenance contracts, including their renewal date, shouid be

maintained. This should be reviewed regularly to identify contracts approaching their expiry
date so that renewal can be considered and take place if required,

Benefils
Assets will be properly maintained reducing the chances of breakdown,

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Physical Security and Asset Management 12
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8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.1

9.2

Health & Safety Testing and Risk Assessment

A list of the Board's portable appliances is stored within the portable appliance testing {PAT)
database, which is periodically updated by the Maintenance Supervisor.

Observation
The PAT database lists all portable appliances by location and whether they are a class one

or class two appliances in terms of their electrical protection which determines the pratocol to
be followed for PAT testing. Not all devices are required to be PAT tested annually with PAT
testing requirements assessed on a risk basis. Low risk devices can be PAT tested biennially
or less frequently if required. The PAT database does not include details of the date when
each device was last tested or the date that each device is due to be re-tested.

Risk
Electrical devices may not be PAT tested in accordance with legislation.

Recommendation
R7 In order that the Board complies with legislation the PAT database should be

extended to include fields for recording the dates that devices were last tested, how often the
device should be tested and the date that devices are due to be re-tested.

Benefit
Additional assurance will be obtained that the Board is complying with legislation.

All potentially hazardous assets or activities undergo a risk assessment by suitably competent
members of staff. The Maintenance Supervisor and Maintenance Technician are responsible
for ensuring that risk assessments are in place for all work activities undertaken in order to
deal with the significant risks that the Board has identified surrounding its operations.

An overall risk assessment is in place for the Board which is supported by further risk
assessments for each specific activity. The intranet contains a database with links to
completed risk assessments. Risk assessments are reviewed, where applicabte, annually by
the Maintenance Supervisor. Our previous review of Health and Safety reported in June 2011
found Risk Assessments to be in place, up to date and comprehensive, covering areas such
as hazard identification, existing controls, and risk rated according to likelihood and severity,
and further actions to be taken to mitigate the risk. For the areas covered during this review,
such as the maintenance workshop, we again found Risk Assessments to be in place and up

to date.

Disposal of IT Assets

Due to the size and extent of the operations at the Board, management do not feel that it is
necessary or cost effective to have a planned programme for the replacement of T
equipment. Where possible the life of IT equipment is protonged through refurbishment and
redeployment to other areas of the organisation.

On the few occasions where an IT asset is required to be scrapped, the Maintenance
Superviser is responsible for securely disposing of equipment. The computer hard drive
circuitry is removed from the machine and physically destroyed with the pieces bagged,
sealed and securely stored in one of the Board's safes. The monitor and other peripheral
devices are scrapped in an environmentally safe manner for nil proceeds if no longer required.
The Board's invenitory is then updated to reflect the disposed or scrapped asset.

Tay Road Bridge Jolnt Board — Physical Security and Asset Management 13
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Introduction

As part of the Internal Audit programme at the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board (‘the Board’,) for
2012/13, we carried out a review of the budget setting and budgetary control processes in
place. OQur Audit Needs Assessment, finalised in April 2011, identified these as areas where
risk can arise and where Internal Audit can assist in providing assurances to the Board and
management that the related control environment is operating effectively, ensuring risk is
maintained at an acceptable [evel.

The Board's budgeted revenue income for 2012/13 totals £1,721,213; £1,700,000 Scottish
Government Resource Grant, £11,000 interest on revenue balances; and £10,213 kiosk rent.
Budgeted expenditure for 2012/13 amounts to £1,721,213; £448,704 administration costs;
£499.232 operation costs; £193,617 plant and equipment costs; and £579,660 bridge
maintenance costs. The revenue monitoring report issued to the Board at its meeting on 10
December 2012 projected a budget overspend of £10,000 in relation to administration costs.

The Board's capital plan 2012/13 to 2014/15 budgeted £8,556,000 for capital expenditure
during 2012/13. Budgeted capital income for the year was £7 638,000 financed through a
£6,300,000 Scottish Government Capital Grant and £1,338,000 Capital Grant carried forward
from previous years. This 2012/13 budget gave rise to a £918,000 funding deficit which was to
be discussed with the Scottish Government. The capital monitoring report issued to the Board
at its meeting on 10 December 2012 projected a budget overspend of £2,149,000; to be funded
from a £6,300,000 Scottish Government Capital Grant and £4,405,000 Capital Grant carried

forward from previous years.

The Board has a service level agreement with Dundee City Councit (DCC) for a number of
financial services, including budgetary control. The agreed service includes assistance with the
preparation of annual revenue / capital budgets; the regular monitoring of revenue expenditure
and preparation of budgetary control statements; and the monthly manitoring of capital
expenditure and preparation of capital monitoring statements.

Scope of the Audit

This review covered the pracesses and controls in place for budget setting and budgetary
control within the Board.

Objectives of the Audit

The objectives of the audit were to ensure that:

. budgets are set and approved in accordance with the Financial Regulations;
. budgets are controlled and monitored in accordance with the Financial Regulations;
. information is available to management which is up-to-date and in a format that can be

easily understood;
. budget holders have the necessary skills for managing budgets;
. budget variations are reported and acted upon; and
s Board Officers and the Board regularly review the organisation’s overail financial position.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board ~Budget Setting and Budgetary Control 1
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Audit Approach

We assessed whether the above objectives are being met by documenting the systems and
controls through interviews with the Bridge Manager and accountant at DCC and by review of
the Financial Regulations. We reviewed the information provided fo the Bridge Manager,
Engineer to the Board and Board. We also established whether the expected key controls are
in place by reference to standard control risk assessment tempilates and completion of a
budgetary control assessment ‘pro-forma’.

Finally, we performed compliance testing where necessary to determine whether these controls
are working effectively.

Action Plan

This report sets out one improvement action which is discussed within the text for clarity. An
action plan for implementation of this recommendation can be found at Section 2 of this report.

To aid the use of the action plan, our recommendations are graded to denote the level of
importance that should be given to each one. These gradings are as follows:

A |ssues which require the consideration of the Board.
B Significant matters which the Bridge Manager can resolve.
C Less significant matters, which do not require urgent attention but which should be

followed up within a reasonable timescale.

Overall Conclusion
On the basis of the work dane, we obtained reasonable assurance that:

+ budgets are set and approved in accordance with the Financial Regulations;

» budgets are controlled and monitored in accordance with the Financial Regulations;

¢ information is available to management which is up-to-date and in a format that can be
easily understood,

+ budget holders have the necessary skills for managing budgets;

«  budget variations are reported and acted upon; and

« Board Officers and the Board regularly review the organisation's overalil financial position.

Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations

Monthly management reports highlight for each revenue budget head the monthly and
cumulative actual spend; full year budget; balance available; and percentage spent. Whilst
these reports include columns for recording month and cumulative committed spend such
spend is not recorded; as the Board does not process purchase orders (POs) through the
finance system. The Administration Assistant maintains a PO spreadsheet that highlights red
all the POs that have been raised but not invoiced; however the spreadsheet does not record
the PO value making it difficult to quantify committed spend. We recommend that
consideration is given to recording PO values within the PO spreadshest.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board <Budget Setting and Budgetary Gontrol 2z
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Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations (continued)

Our review found that revenue and capital monitoring information was provided in a user
friendly format and issued to budget holders on a timely basis. Although the Bridge Manager
has not received budget training whilst at the Board he does not consider this necessary. The
Bridge Manager advised that budget training was provided during his previous employment
where he was responsible for managing budgets. The Bridge Manager also highlighted that
support with managing a budget and interpreting revenue and capital monitoring reports was
available from the accountant at DCC and Treasurer if required.

Our testing confirmed that revenue and capital monitoring reports are issued to the
September, December and March Board meetings. These reports highlight actual
expenditure, variances between budget and projected outturn and the reasons for variances.
The reports also highlight how overspends shall be funded. Such monitoring reports are not
issued to the June Board meeting; however a report is submitted from the Treasurer,
accompanying the unaudited statement of accounts, which comments on the main budget
variances. Budget variances are also highlighted, in detail, within the unaudited statement of
accounts. Monitoring reports are discussed at Officers’ and Chalrman pre agenda meetings
prior to being submitted to the Board.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff at the Board and the accountant at
DCC for the co-operation and assistance we received during the course of our review.
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1.

1.1

1.2

1.2.1

1.3

1.3.41

1.4

1.4.1

14.2

24

211

Financial Regulations

Revenue Budget

In accordance with section 2.2 of the Financial Regulations ‘The Bridge Manager shall prepare
annual estimates of income and expenditure on revente accounts and shall provide the
Treasurer with all necessary information regarding requirements on a timeous basis’.

Capital Budget

Responsibility for the preparation of the capital budget is set out within section 3.2 of the
Financial Regulations, which states: ‘The Engineer and Bridge Manager shall jointly prepare 3
yearly estimates of capital expenditure and income and shall provide the Treasurer with all
necessary information regarding requirements on a fimeous basis’.

Expenditure Monitoring

In fine with section 4 of the Financial Regulations ‘The primary responsibility for detaiied
monitoring and control of the Board's revenue and capital expenditure lies with the Bridge
Manager. ‘The Treasurer shall report periodically to the Board on its actual and projected
revenue and capital expenditure for each financial year.

Procedures in Place

The Bridge Manager drafts the proposed revenue budget for the forthcoming financial year in
September / October. During this time the Bridge Manager also meets with the Engineer to
the Board to prepare the proposed 3 year capital plan. The revenue budget and capital plan
are discussed with the Board’s accountant at DCC in November each year prior to being
submitted to the Board in December for formal approval.

Regular revenue and capital monitoring reports are issued to Board Officers and the Board
{refer to sections 2 and 4 below for further detalls).

Information Available to Budget Holders
Good Practice Prompts

‘Each budget holder should receive reguiar monitoring reports (probably using a monthly or 4-
weekly reporting period) showing:

. Committed expenditure and, where relevant, income to date;

. Variance against projected spend / income to date using, where appropriate, budget
profiling; and

. Projected outturn (expected and, where relavant, income).’

‘Budget monitoring reports should be available:

. In a form that is 'user friendfy’ and
) Within a time perfod that allows effective corrective action to be taken where necessary

(e.g. within 3 weeks of the end of the month).’

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board -Budget Setting and Budgetary Control
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2.1

213

2.2

221

222

223

224

Information Available to Budget Holders (Continued)

Good Practice Prompts (Continued)

‘Reports should automatically highlight major variances (both under and over spends} to direct
budget holder’s attention to where action may be required.’

Procedures in Place

Observation
Monthly management reports, issued by DCC fo the Bridge Manager, highlight for each

revenue budget head the monthly and cumulative actual spend; full year budget, balance
available; and percentage spent. The reports contain columns for month and cumulative
committed spend; however such spend is not recorded within the reports as the Board does
nat pracess purchase orders (POs) through the finance system. Discussion with the Bridge
Manager and accountant at DCC highlighted that the PO processing facllity within the system
was hot considered necessary for the Board's circumstances. Our review highlighted that the
Administration Assistant at the Board maintains a PO spreadsheet which records all POs
raised and invoices received. POs which have been raised but for which no invoice has been
received are highlighted red; however whilst the spreadsheet records the PO number if does
not record the PO value, making it difficult to quantify committed spend.

Risk
Budget overspends may arise as a result of committed spend not being recorded.

Recommendation
RrR1 Consideration should be given to recording on the PO spreadsheet, maintained by the

Administration Assistant, the value of each PO raised.

Benefif
Potential reduction in overspends due to committed spend being recorded.

The full year budget, cumulative actual spend, balance available and percentage spent details
are taken from the monthly management reports and input into a spreadsheet by the Bridge
Manager. Whilst this may appear to be an unnecessary duplication of work the Bridge
Manager finds that this exercise ensures each budget head is examined closely. In addition,
the spreadsheet highlights overspends red, which draws attention to areas where action may

be required.

Whilst the monthly management reports include fuit year budget figures they do not include
projected spend / income to date. The Bridge Manager advised that expenditure at the Board
tends to be recurring. The accountant at DCC runs reporis which compare the current
monih’s spend against that of last year's. Where significant and unexpected variances arise
the accountant will investigate these further. Income outwith the Scoftish Government
Resource Grant is minimal. Projected outturn figures are reported within the revenue and
capital monitoring reports issued to the Board in September, December and March and this is

considered sufficient.

The Bridge Manager is the budget holder for the Board; however responsibility for the ‘works’
element of the capital budget has been delegated to the Engineer fo the Board. Both the
Bridge Manager and Engineer to the Board receive monthly capital monitoring spreadsheets
from the accountant at DCC. Such spreadsheets highlight the expenditure attributed each
month to the projects within the capital plan on a cash and accruals basis. In addition a
summary spreadsheet reports for each project the approved budget; the amount carried
forward from previous year; budget adjustments; slippage in to the next year; revised capital
budget; actual expenditure and projected ouiturn.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Beard ~Budget Setting and Budgetary Control
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2.

2.2

2.2.5

3.1

311

3.2

3241

4.1.2

413

4.2

421

Information Available to Budget Holders (Continued)

Procedures in Place

The monthly management reports and capital monitoring spreadsheets received by the Bridge
Manager are forwarded to the Administrative Officer and Maintenance Supervisor to inform
them of the Board’s performance. Our review found that Board staff considered the reports /
spreadsheets received to be user-friendly and that such reports / spreadsheets were issued

within a week of being produced.
Budget Holder Skills and Support

Good Practice Prompt

‘Budget holders have the necessary skills for managing budgets. Support should be given by
way of training and manuals for budget holders with a non-financial background.”

Procedures in Place

The Bridge Manager and Engineer to the Board have the necessary skills for managing
budgets. The Bridge Manager highlighted that part of the training to become a Chartered
Engineer involves managing contracts, which includes dealing with financial data. |n addition,
the Bridge Manager was respansible for managing budgets in his previous employment and
received budget training during this time. Although the Bridge Manager has not received
budget training whilst at the Board he does not consider this necessary. Discussion with the
Bridge Manager highlighted that support with managing a budget and interpreting revenue and
capital monitoring reports was available from the accountant at DCC and Treasurer if required.

Budget Variations are Reported and Acted Upon

Good Practice Prompts

‘Each budget holder is clear about what action should be faken in the event of over/ under
spends.’

‘Where appropriate action is not taken on major variances, the matler is automatically brought
fo the attention of the budget holder's line manager.’

"At functional level, the refevant senior management team reviews the financial position at
feast each reporting period.’

Procedures in Place

Section 4.2 of the Financial Regulations states that ‘Revenue and Capital expenditure shall be
restricted fo that included in the appropriate Budget, unless proposals for additional
expenditure have heen approved by the Board'.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board ~Budget Setting and Budgetary Control



&

3. Main Report HENDERSON LOGGIE

4.

4.2

422

423

5.1

5.1.1

5.2

521

5.2.2

Budget Variations are Reported and Acted Upon (Continued)

Procedures in Place

Revenue and capital monitoring reporis are issued to the September, December and March
Board meetings. These reports highlight actual expenditure, variances between budget and
projected outturn and the reasons for variances. The reports also highlight how overspends
shall be funded and how any unspent grant shall be carried forward to the next financial year,
with the agreement of the Scottish Government. Such monitoring reports are not issued to the
June Board meeting; however a report is submitted from the Treasurer, accompanying the
unaudited statement of accounts, which comments upon the main budget variances. Budget
variances are also highlighted, in detail, within the unaudited statement of accounts.

The Bridge Manager and Engineer to the Board meet with the accountant at DCC each
quarter to discuss actual and anticipated over / under spends which are to be included within
the monitoring reports issued fo the Board., Reports to the Board include actual spend;
however the Bridge Manager advised that where committed expenditure was likely fo result in
a significant overspend then this would be discussed with the accountant and highlighted
within the projected outturn figures submitted to the Board. Revenue and capital monitoring
reports are discussed at the Officers’ and Chairman pre agenda meetings prior to being

submitted to the Board.

Board Officers / Board Review of the Organisation’s Overall Financial
Position

Good Practice Prompt

The comporale management team reviews the organisation’s overall financial position at least
each reporting period.’

Procedures in Place

As noted at paragraphs 4.2.2 and 4.2.3 above, Board Officers and the Board regularly review
revenue and capital monitoring reports throughout the year.

Monthly management reports, highlighting the current revenue budget position, and capital
monitoring spreadsheets are also discussed at the monthly management team meetings.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board —~Budget Setting and Budgetary Control
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Introduction and Background

As part of the Internal Audit programme at the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board (the Board') for
2012/13, we carried out a review of the arrangements in place in relation to Data Protection
and Freedom of Information (Fol). Our Audit Needs Assessment, finalised in April 2011,
identified these as areas where risk can arise and where Internal Audit can assist in providing
assurances to the Board and management that the related control environment is operating
effectively, ensuring risk is maintained at an acceptable level.

There are eight Data Protection principles and compliance with these principles is
fundamental to the purpose of the Data Protection Act. These principles state that data is to
be fairly and lawfully processed; processed for the stated purposes only; adequate, refevant
and not excessive; accurate; kept for no longer than necessary, processed in accordance with
the individual's rights; secure and not transmitted outwith the European Economic Area (EEA)

without adequate protection.

in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998, the organisation, as a data controller,
should set appropriate security safeguards for the personal information it processes. All data,
sources of data and disclosure which relate to an individual, must be registered under the Act.
The organisation currently has an entry on the Data Protection Register (expiring 25 October
2013) in respect of personal data held for relevant purposes.

The Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 (Fol(S)A) came into effect on 1 January
2005, entitling individuals to see information held by public authorities as defined by the
Scottish Information Commissioner. This includes information recorded on paper, computer
files (including e-mails), video and microfiche. Under the Fol(S)A, all Scottish public
authorities have a statutory obligation to respond to Fol regquests within 20 working days;
however authorities have the right to withhold information if it falls under one of the
exemptions listed in the Fol(S)A. Where information is withheld, the reasons for non
disclosure must be notified to the individual making the request.

In accordance with the Fol(S)A the Board has developed a Publication Scheme which acts as
a guide to the information available at the Board; where it can be found; and whether or not it
is available free of charge. The Publication Scheme is available on the Board’s and Dundee

City Council's website.

Scope of the Audit

The audit focussed on the arrangements in place within the Board to ensure compliance with
the Data Protection Act 1998 and the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002.

Objectives of the Audit

The main objectives of the audit were to ensure that:

. members of staff have been formally appointed with overall responsibility for
implementation of the Data Protection Act 1998 and the Fol(S} Act 2002;

. responsibilities for these members of staff have been clearly documented and
communicated to all staff;

. sufficient time has been made available for key individuals to meet their
responsibilities;

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - Data Protection / Freedom of Information |
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Objectives of the Audit (Continued)

. Data Protection and Fol policies and procedures exist within the Board and that they
comply with legistation, are revisited and revised regutarly and are effectively
communicated to all staff;

. the Board has developed an awareness and training programme for all staff, including
sufficient awareness training during the induction process and that all staff have
received this training; and

° systems are in place to capture, record and monitor the number and types of Fal
requests received, including the number of exempt requests and number of reguests
responded to within / outwith 20 working days.

Audit Approach

A Data Protection and Fol questionnaire was compiled and discussed with the Bridge
Manager to determine current working practices and systems in place within the Board in
relation to Data Protection and Fol. A copy of the completed questionnaire is included at

Section 3.

Data Protection and Fol policies and procedures, where available, were reviewed to ensure
compliance with legistation. We also established through discussion with the Bridge Manager
and documentary review, whether there is an adequate system in place to ensure policies and
procedures are revisited and revised regularty and effectively communicated to staff. We
also used good practice checklists to assess the procedures in place.

The current training programme, including induction training for new starts, was reviewed fo
ensure adequate coverage of Data Protection and Fol.

The systems in place to capture, record, and monitor the numbers and types of Fol requests
received were also reviewed.

Action Plan

This report sets out 6 improvement actions, which we consider necessary o ensure efficient
delivery of each objective and these are discussed within the text for clarity. An action plan
for implementation of these recommendations can be found at Section 2 of this report.

To aid the use of the action plan, our recommendations have been graded to denote the level
of importance that should be given to each one. The gradings are as follows:

A Issues which require the consideration of the Board.
B Significant matters which the Bridge Manager can resolve.
C Less significant matters, which do not require urgent attention but which should be

followed up within a reasonable timescale.

Tay Read Bridge Joint Board - Data Protection / Freedom of {nformation 2
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Overall Conclusion

On the basis of the work done reasonable assurance was obtained that:

. The Clerk to the Board has been formally appointed with overall responsibility for the
implementation of the Data Protection Act 1998, However it is currently unclear who
has overall responsibility for the implementation of the Fol(S)A 2002.

. Data Protection and Fol responsibilities of staff members have not been clearly
documented or communicated to all staff, and recommendations have been raised in
relation to these matters.

. The Bridge Manager has made sufficient time available to respond to Police CCTV
footage and Fol requests.

. Procedures for dealing with subject access requests from current and former
employees are documented within the staff handbook and the Board’s ‘Cade of
Practice for Operation of CCTV Equipment’ is reviewed annually and is available on
the Board's network and in the Board's Control Room. However there is no formally
documented Data Protection Policy or Fol Policy and procedures. Furthermare, there
are no pracedures relating to the retention, archiving and destruction of employees’
personal details. Recommendations have been raised to deal with these matters.

. The Board has not developed an awareness and fraining programme for staff in
relation to Data Protection and Fol. [t is appreciated that ongoing training may not be
appropriate for the majority of staff, however consideration should be given to
incorporating awareness training into the induction process for all staff.

. There are systems in place to capture, record and monitor the number and types of Fol
requests received, including the number of exempt requests and the number of
requests responded to within / outwith the statutory timescales. Testing in this area
was satisfactory with the exception of one instance during 201 1/12 where a response to
a Fol request excluded details of the right to ask for a review, and about the rights of
the application to the Scottish Information Commissioner as outlined within the
information Commissioner's publication ‘Dealing with Requests’. However our review
found all responses to Fol requests in 2012/13 included the above information as
standard and as such no recommendation has been raised.

Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations

The Board's Scheme of Delegation states that the Clerk to the Board has authority to deal
with all matters refevant to the Data Protection Act, however no reference is made to the
Fol(S)A. We recommend that the Board's Scheme of Delegation documents the individual(s)
responsible for implementing the Fol(S)A at the Board.

Our review found that Data Protection and Fol responsibilities are not documented within the
employment contracts and job descriptions of Board staff members, We recommend that
such responsibilities are documented within employment contracts and job descriptions,

where appropriate.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - Data Protection i Freedom of Information 3
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Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations (continued)

The Board’s induction check sheet requires employees to confirm they have been issued with
a staff handbook. The handbook states that “any information stored about individuals must be
in accordance with the Data Protection Act” and refers to the procedures in place for dealing
with subject access requests from current and former employees. However there is no
reference to the Fol(S)A or Fol requests within the staff handbook and no formal Data
Protection or Fol training is provided to Board staff; although the Clerk to the Board has
received such training. We recommend that the Bridge Manager considers developing &
handout to be issued during induction, which refers to the Board's overall Data Protection and
Fol responsibilities. The handout could potentially refer to the Board's Data Protection and

Fol policies and procedures.

Discussion with the Bridge Manager confirmed there are no documented Data Protection or
Fol policies in place at the Board, nor are there documented Fol procedures. Although the
Board's Publication Scheme refers to the organisation’s Records Management Policy our
review found that no such Policy was in place. We recommend that consideration is given to
incorporating the Board's subject access request procedures and ‘Code of Practice for
Operation of CCTV Equipment’ into a Data Protection Policy, which outlines the Board’s
policies for the retention, archiving and destruction of staffs' personal details. Such a Policy
should be formally approved by the Board. We also recommend that consideration is given
to preparing and having the Board formally approve a Fo} Policy which summarises the
Board's approach and responsibilities under the Fol(S)A. included within the Foi Policy or
supporting Fol procedures should be the reporting structure and processes in place for
dealing with information requests. If these recommendations are implemented then a
timetable should be established to regularly revisit and review the policies and procedures.

Testing of Fol requests received during 2012/13 and 2011/12 was undertaken and all were
found to have been responded to within the statutory 20 working days. All requests were
fulfilled with the exception of one, due to the individual's live reparation claim intimated
against the Board. This refusal should have included advice on the right of appeal, however
given that all responses to Fol requests in 2012/13 included right of appeal information as
standard no recommendation has been raised within this report.

Acknowledgements

We would like to thank the staff, in particular the Bridge Manager, for the co-operation and
assistance we received during the course of our review.
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REPORTTO:  TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD — 17 JUNE 2013

REPORTON:  RESPONSE TO INTERNAL AUDITOR’S ANNUAL REPORT TO
MEMBERS

REPORTBY:  THE BRIDGE MANAGER ;

REPORTNO:  TRB 08 - 2013 (TEM No:....... qa)).;; ................. -

1

1.1

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report is in response to the Annual Report, ref 2013/07, prepared by the Board’s
Internai Auditor, Henderson Loggie, on Data Protection and Freedom of Information,
Budget Setting and Budgetary Control, Physical Security and Asset Management,
Delivery of Major Projects and previous Audit follow ups. A copy of the Internal
Auditor's report is included on the Agenda as a separate ltem.

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:-
) Endorse this report as the formal response to the Internal Auditor's report.

i} Instruct the Bridge Manager to implement the Internal Auditor's
recommendations as set out in paragraphs 6.2 to 6.7 inclusive.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications associated with this report.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND

Introduction

The Board's Internal Audit Needs Assessment and Strategic Plan, issued in April
2011, identified Data Protection and Freedom of Information, Budget Setting and
Budgetary Control, Physical Security and Asset Management, Delivery of Major
Projects as areas where risk can arise and as part of the planned internal audit work,
a high level review of the arrangements in place at the Board was carried out in

March / April 2013.
REPORT

Internal Auditor's Annual Report




124

6.2

6.3

i} The Internal Auditor's Annual Report, Ref 2013/07, describes the scope of the
audit work undertaken, the specific objectives of the audit and the principal
conclusions drawn from the review.

i) The report is based on the findings of the individual reports below:-
2013/01 Annual Plan 2011/12
2013/02 Data Protection and Freedom of Information
2013/03 Budget Setting and Budgetary Control
2013/04 Physical Security and Asset Management
2013/05 Delivery of Major Project — Pier Protection Works
2013/06 Follow Up reviews

Overall no significant issues identifying major internal control weaknesses were
identified. It was found that procedures were operating adequately and the following
issues raised from the individual reports were identified for the opportunity of further
strengthening existing procedures.

In total 15 Action points identified by the Audit were categorised as follows:-

Class A — Critical issues which require consideration by the Board
Number of Actions — Nil

Class B ~ Significant matters which the Bridge Manager can resolve
Number of Actions — 7

Class C — Routine, less significant actions not requiring urgent action
Number of Actions - 8

Report 2013/02 - Data Protection and Freedom of Information — Main

Recommendations

i) The following actions were agreed as a resuit of the recommendations of the
report:-

» Scheme of delegation to be updated clarifying roles and
responsibilities under FOISA
» Formal policies on Freedom of Information and Data Protection to be

produced
« Staff induction training to include Data Protection and Freedom of

Information

Report 2013/03 — Budget Setting and Budgetary Contro! = Main Recommendations

i) The following actions was agreed as a resuit of the recommendations of the
report:~

¢ A Purchase Order spreadsheet he developed to track Orders

N3
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6.6
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8.1

Report 2013/04 - . Physical Security and Asset Management — Main

Recommendations

i) The following actions were agreed as a result of the recommendations of the
report:-

» Development of standard method of tagging assets

* Develop a register of Maintenance Contracts

* Rationalisation of asset inventories and expand to include Portable
Appliance testing records

Report 2013/05 - Delivery of Major Proiject — Pier Protection Works

i} The following action was agreed as a result of the recommendations of the
report:-
¢ Undertake a formal post project review

Report 2013/06 — Follow Up report

From the previous Audits there were 15 items requiring foilow up actions. Of these
13, 10 have been fully implemented, with the remaining 5 items due for completion by
the end of 2013.

CONSULTATION

The Clerk, Treasurer and the Engineer have been consulted in the preparation of this
repor.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Internal Audit Reports

i) 2013/01 Annual Plan 2011/12
2013/02 Data Protection and Freedom of Information
2013/03 Budget Setting and Budgetary Control
2013/04 Physical Security and Asset Management
2013/05 Delivery of Major Project — Pier Protection Works
2013/06 Follow Up reviews

2013/07 Annual report to the Joint Board

IAIN MACKINNON
BRIDGE MANAGER
14 May 2013
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD ~ 17 June 2013

REPORT ON: ADDITIONAL STAFFING POLICIES

REPORT BY: THE BRIDGE MANAGER

REPORT NO: TRB 07- 2013

1.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

7

7.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To obtain the Board's approva! of additional policies to be added to the Staff Handbook.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Board are asked to approve the following Policies to be added to the Staff Handbook:-

i) Special Leave Policy -~ Near Relative liness

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications associated with this report.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None.

COMMENTARY

Special Leave - Near Relative lliness

This policy gives the Bridge Manager discretion to grant staff up to two paid days leave of absence

to deal with emergency situations where illness of a near relative requires them to take time off work
to provide or arrange care. The policy does not cover for time off for planned medical appointments

etc.

This policy is in line with that already in place for employees of Dundee City Council and by
adopting this policy the Board wiil provide the same level of discretionary Special Leave to its
employees as other comparable organisations.

CONSULTATIONS

The Treasurer, Clerk and Engineer to the Board, and Trade Unions
have been consulted in the preparation of this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

IAIN MACKINNON
BRIDGE MANAGER
2 February 2011
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Appendix A

Special Leave — Near Relative lilness

Special leave — Near relatjve lllness

This policy is to cover absence where unexpected/emergency situations result in a member of
staff having to request time off deal with the immediate care arrangements caused by the illness of
a near relative. Situations such as planned hospital visits by near relatives are not covered by this
policy.

Near relative (Spouse, partner, daughter, son, mother, father, brother, sister) : Up to 2 days paid
leave per rolling 12 month period, at discretion of Bridge Manager.
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The contacts at KPMG
Inconnection with this
report are;

Staphen Reid

Dirsctor, KPMG L2 -
Tel: 0131527 6795
Fax: 0131 527 6666
stephen.reid@kpmg.co.uk

Keith Macpherson
SarigrManagern, KRMG LLP
Tel: 0141 300 5806

Fax: 0141204 1584
kelth.macpherson@kpmg.co.uk

Robin Scutar

Atidit in-charge, KPMG LLP
Tel: 0131 527 6862

Fax: D131 527 8566
Tabin soutar@kpma.eo.uk
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About this report
This report has been prepared in 1ce with the responsibilities set out within the Audit Scotland’s Cede of Audit Practice (“the Code").

This report is for the benefit of only Tay Road Bridge Joint Board and is made available to the Accounts Commission for Scotland and Audit Scotland (all together “the
beneficiaries”), and has been released to the beneficiaries on the basis that wider disclosure is permitted for information purposes but that we have not taken account of
the wider requirements or circumstances of anyone other than the beneficiaries.

Nothing in this report constitutes an opinion on a valuation or legal advice.

Wea have not verified the reliability or accuracy of any information obtained in the course of our work, other than in the limited circumstances set out in the scope and
objectives section of this report.

This report Is not suitable to be refisd on by any parly wishing to acquire righis against KPMG LLP (other than the beneficiaries) for any purpose or in any context. Any
party ather than the beneficiaries that obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on this report (or any part of it) does so at ils own risk. To lhe fullesi
extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP does nol assume any responsibility and will not accept any liability in respect of this report to any party other than the beneficiaries.
Complaints

If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our services can be improved or if you have a complaint about them, you are invited to contact Stephen Reid, who is
the engagement leader for our services to Tay Road Bridge Joint Board, telephone 0131 527 6795 email: stephen.reid@kpmg.co.uk who will try to resolve your
complaint. I your problem is not resolved, you should contact Alex Sanderson, our Head of Audit in Scotland, either by writing to him at Saltire Court, 20 Castle Terracs,
Edinburgh, EH1 2EG or by telephoning 0131 527 6720 or emalil to alex.sanderson@kpmg.co.uk. We will investigate any complaint promptly and do what we can to
resolve the difficulties. After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can refer the matter to Russell Frith, Assistant Auditor
General, Audit Scotland, 110 George Street, Edinburgh, EH2 4LH,

$2013 KPMG
KPMG Irdemst

wpe LLPend s
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Experience Page 13
Our senior management team from 2012 remains
unchanged so you retain strong continuity.

As previously, we will use specialists from our
pensions {eams 1o provide on the ground support
1o our core audit team.

Independence Appendix 1

Independence and quality are at
the foundation of our approach,
We have systems and processes
1o ensure our ongoing
independence and will report
formally on this, together with any
non-audit fees received. We are
isfied that we are independent.

Adding vaiue

The knowiedge gained from our previous audit means
we understand your business issues and how they
impact the financial statements. We keep you advised
of new accounting standards and accounting issues as
they arise.

We will report on identified material control
weaknesses and other performance improvement
observations as well as unadjusted audit differences.

Tailorad approach Pegas4lo7

We continue to invest the time fo understand the key
challenges and drivers affecting your operations. Our
his y designed to align with

audit app
these.

Risk based spproach Pagaes4fo7
We continue to work with
management to inform our

di ding of the busi and
its challenges to ensure our audit
responds to changes in the
business.

Insightful reporting
You expect us to form independent views on the key issues. Wa will
express these clearly and concisely in a way that is understandable to

and non: tants alike.
Our audit gives us an independent view on your business. We use
this k i hall he key deli d by your

internal repm'ting sy:hml-.
We will discuss these areas with the Joint Board.

SZCIZ KPR LLP, 3 UK Limded Liehiky Pasinacsiip, = & subidsry of KFMO Evsops LLF and s membet fon of the KPWG netwerk of bdepandsnt faarber e afiFtated with
EPNG infemetiorad Cooperative (KPS intermsticnal), s Selss willy Al vights sesarved. Lise of this repont Is RESTRICTED - see Hetks on coclents pege.
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Our audit work is undertaken
In‘accordance with Audit
Scotland's Code of Audit
Practice, This specifies a
number of objeatives for our
audit.

Audit strategy and planning
Introduction

The Accounts Commission for Scotland has appointed KPMG LLP
as auditors of Tay Road Bridge Joint Board (“the Joint Board”)
under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 (“the Act”), The
period of appointment is 2011-12 to 2015-16, inclusive. This
document summarises our responsibilities as external auditors for
the year ending 31 March 2013 and our intended approach to
issues impacting the Joint Board's activities in that year.

We carry out our audit in accordance with our statutory
responsibilities under the Act and in accordance with the
Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board (“APB") and the wider responsibilities
embodied in Audit Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice. Under this
Code of Audit Practice auditors address and comment upon a
number of objectives, together with complying with a number of
obligations. The Code of Audit Practice also places a number of

_ obligations on the Joint Beard.

| Auditors’ objectives in relation to the Code of Audit Practice are to:
‘f m audit the financial statements and place a certificate on the

| statements stating that the audit has been conducted in

| accordance with Part VIl of the Act;

; = salisfy ourselves that:

i - thefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance
i with all applicable statutory requirements;

' - proper accounting practices have been observed in the

| preparation of the financial statements;

| - the body has made proper arrangements for securing Best
| Value and is complying with its community duties; and

-~ the body has made adequate arangements for collecting,

i recording and publishing prescribed performance

] information;

' = hear any objection to the financial statements lodged by an
|___interested person.

We conduct our audit of the financial statements in line with
Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand), taking into
account the UK Auditing Practices Board's Practice Note 10
(revised). We have a professional responsibility to report if the
financial statements do not comply, in any material respect, with the
IFRS-based Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2012-13 ("the Code”), taking account of the
international financial reporting standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and relevant guidance issued by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountability ("CIPFA") /
Local Authorities (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Board (“LASAAC?).

As part of our audit we also review the financial information
contained in the foreword to ensure that it is consistent with the
financial statements. We also review the annual governance
statement to ensure it has been prepared in accordance with the
Code and other relevant guidance, taking account of the financial
statements and other information gained by us as auditors.

International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 240: The
auditor's responsibility to consider fraud in an audit of financial
statements applies to our work. In particular, this Standard requires
us to consider directly the possibility that management may choose
to override the system of internal controls that otherwise may
appear to be operaling effectively. The Standard requires the
auditor to maintain an aftitude of professional scepticism,
recognising the possibility that a material misstatement due to fraud
could exist — notwithstanding the auditor's experience with regard to
the honesty and integrity of management and those charged with
governance.

In accordance with International Standard on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) 260: Communication with those charged with governance
we will report to you all non-material, non-trivial errors, which have
not been adjusted.




Audit strategy and planning
Audit focus areas
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Ch is risk-
focuses on the

T Financial bosiiioﬁ
statements,
Throligh mestings with

management, we have

performed Initial risk

assessment procedures fo

identify focus areas for the

2'0!2-‘_!3 audit,

Areas of audit focus are:

= financial position; and

Capilal

m capital programme. programme

The budget monitoring posttion reported to the Joint Board in March
2013 identified a projected underspend for 2012-13 of £66,000,
based on the results to 31 January 2013, The Joint Board had a
£160,000 revenue support grant underspend in 2011-12 which was
agreed fo be carried forward into 2012-13. Taken together, and
subject to ag with Transy , a carry forward of
£226,000 is now projected for 2013-14,

The resulting projected general fund reserve is £1.16 million, which is
subject fo negotiation with the Scottish Government.

The Joint Board’s approved capital programme for 2012-13 totalled
£8.6 million, and is financed principally through Scottish Government
capital grant funding. Due partly fo slippage in the 2011-12 capital
programme arising after approval of the budget, the forecast capital
programme outtum for 2012-13 Is currently £10.5 million, A further
£1 million of available capital grant will be carried forward into 2013-
14 and applied to the capital programme then, again subject to
agreement by Transpert Scotland.

D201 KPME LLP, & UK Limdted Lial

FPYG Intermatio perafive (P

We have developed an understanding of your key audit risk areas based on our initial risk assessment procedures, including discussions with
management. The key areas identified are detailed below. Our risk assessment
update you in respect of any emerging risks as we become aware of them.

Key risk and implications Our planned audit approach

procedures are ongoing throughout the audit, and we will

Our audit procedures during the year will consist of:

¥ updating our understanding of the 2012-13 budget
setting process;

®  consideration of the key budget pressures, and the
action taken by management to address these; and

2 reviewing the reporied forecast outturn during the year
against the final audited position, 1o allow us to comment
on the accuracy of budget monitoring during the year.

We will also consider the 2013-14 budget position, which

was based on assumed Scottish Government resource grant

of £1.7 million.

We will review the capital projects comprising the approved
capital programme, and link this work to our audit of
property, plant and equipment during the year.

We will also ider the r ition of iated grant
funding to ensure this is appropriately recorded within the
correct financial ysar.
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Audit strategy and planning
Audit methodology

‘a‘,;ipma;h_m audit ofy

m  Low/medium value
High/medium volume
Some areas rsqu’idng'\.iu‘d

= High value
m Low volume

= Unususl non—m.uﬁng
= Accounting estimates
= Significant judgements

Note:  Assuming controls are found fo operate @s designed.

& 2012 KPMG LLF, » UK Lended Liaodity Poitharchip, s a subsidsry of KM@ Ewops LLF 8nd & rember fom of the KPMG network of ndependent member frme affeted wih
KPUG parsive (PG It - Sades wally. Allfights sarvad, Use of this reood I REETRICTED - see Nofics on cordents page.




We use oif experfencé from
the 2911-12 audit to inform
ouF assessment,

on this page we fink the
captions with significant
Inherent risks to the refevant
processes for the Joint
Board's comprehensive
income and expenditure
statement, ;
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- Audit strategy and planning

Financial statements — comprehensive income and expenditure statement

2011-12 § Planning risk Inherent risk areas
balance | assessment
(£'000}

£
2
3
]
=
>
w

= Inosme is recognised in the correct year
= Income is not deferred as appropriate

Other operating
income s @ &
expenditure

Financing and
investment income (86) @ v
and expenditure

Qther

comprehensive

Income and 989 @ 4
expenditure .

G netvicrk of Indeper

G s stidated with &
RICTED = see Holica on 5
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Audit strategy and planning
Financial statements - balance sheet

2011:12 i Process Inherent nck arcas
balance ‘§ assessment
{£°000) '
proce e Jo o | %
Board’s balance shest. 3
W - w

Property, plant and
equlpment - -

Other Ion'g term
- 85
assets

Short term debtors 581

equivalents

Inventories 47

q
L
&
Cashiand Gash 155 @ P
&
@

Short term creditors (2,367)

& Acluarial assumpti are overly prudent / optimi:

Pension asset | ! o) o = Data underlying @aﬁd_mhﬂgﬁm_,-k:w

ity = Acluarial calculalions are not accurately reflected in the financial
statements

Usealils reserves (8,381) ] v

Uniseablo reserves (57.416) % v

-1

ar fares viflinted with

&2018 KPMG LLP, b UK Limded
KFMG irdarmational Conperatie (
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end,

The Joint Board js retjuired
fo prepare financial
statements in accordance
with the Code. KPMG s
committed to working with
manageinent fo enhance the
clarity and impact of the
financial statements.

Audit strategy and planning
Presentation of financial statements
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ST The 2012-13 financial statements will be prepared in accordance with the Code of practics on local authority accounting in
on Local the United Kingdom 2012-13 (‘the Code’) which Is based on intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS").

sl R o 2012-13 Codo has a number of amendments from the 2011-12 version and management should reflect thes changes
e umfedg to the reporting requirements in the draft financial statements. The amendments include:
Kingdorn 2012- =~ B PN relation to the objective of the financial statements and the qualitative characteristics of financial information;

13 (the Code”)  a enco 'n@g;'gam‘an. i for local authority bodies to prepare the Explanatory Forward  taking into consideration the
mqurmmenis'ofme Government's Financial Reporting Manual (FReM);

a requirement to mcoﬁru‘se as an asset allowances under the carbon reduction commitment scheme;
amendments in relation to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (transfer of financial assets).

Prasentation of financial statemenis

The current version of the Code was first applicable in respect of the year ended 31 March 2011 and typically had the effect of increasing the
length and complexity of financial statements. The Audit Commission issued a briefing for those that prepare IFRS-based financial statements in
local government, Let's be ciearin January 2012, The briefing notes that the financial statements of those applying the Code are, on

average, 113 pages long and while this supports transparency, there is a risk that the users of the financial statements are daunted by their

complexity and find them difficult to interpret and understand.

Much of this complexity comes from the need to reconcile financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS, with the control framework
imposed by government. This includes a series of adjustments necessary to reconcile the accounting cost of services, with the cost which is

charged to the general fund on a statutory basis.

This briefing, and CIPFA’s publication, /FRS: how (o fell the story suggest a number of ways in which accessibility and clarity of financial
statements could be improved including:

= the use of summaries and extracts which provide key elements of information;

m reducing and / or efiminating unnecessary disclosures; and

m critically reviewing the financial statement template to reduce the length and focus of reporting.

Itis likely that there will be continued focus on the presentation of information and we will work with management to consider the implications of
any updated guidance and support management to enhance the clarity and impact of the financial statements.
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 Audit strategy and planning
Mandatory communications

Mandatory communications Alea Issue

regiiired by Auditing Fraud risks m Itis the responsibility nfnian_agaman' t to

Standards implement accounting and intemal conirol
tandards are set ol il ik : o

detect fraud and error, Such systems reduce
but do not eliminate the risk of misstatements
caused by fraud or emor.

m Those charged with govemance must ensure,
through oversight of management, the integrity
of these systems and that appropriate controls
are in place, including those for monitoring risk,
financial control and compliance with laws. This
is in the context of preparing financial
statements that give a true and fair view and
that do not contain material misstatements
arising from fraudulent reporting (intentional
misstatements / omissions to deceive the
financial statement user) or from the
misappropriation of assets.

opposiie.

Related party = Management has processes in place {o identify

iransactions related party transactions and a number were
disclosed in the 2011-12 financial statements.
All material related party transactions must be
disclosed in the financial statements.

independence ® Auditing Standards require us to consider our

independence and related matters in our
dealings with the Joint Board.

KPMG response

w Ouraudit procedures are designed to have a reasonable
chance of detecting misstatements as a result of fraud or
error. The audit team will review and discuss fraud
related risks and controls with the treasurer and senior
management, and consider the work of internal audit.

= Our risk assessment procedures will include a number of
interviews with senior personnel concerning processes to
Identify and respond to risks of fraud.

& We will ensure that there continues to be appropriate
processes in place as part of the financial statements
preparation process to identify any related party
transactions.

= We have provided our formal independence

communication in appendix one. In respect of any non-
audit services provided to the Joint Board we have
completed internal conflict checks to confirm that the
services may be provided with no threat to our audit
independence.




éu;ffthdif Is geared to
__identify material errors in the

ds 1o repart to the
ard unadjusted audit

diffsrences other than fon-
trivial items.

Audit approach and planning
Materiality

In accordance with Intemnational Standard on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) 320 Materiality in planning and performing an audit, we plan
and perform our audit to be able to provide reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free of material misstatement and
give a true and fair view. The assessment of what is material is a
matter of professional judgment and includes consideration of both
the amount (quantity) and nature (quality) of misstatements.

Audit materiality is both a quantitative and qualitative measure and
the figures below are a guide only and are based on prior year total
income. We realise that the tolerance for error in certain disclosures
in the financial statements is lower and therefore, we will report to the
Jeint Board smaller errors in areas such as senior officer's
remuneration and related parly transactions. The overriding
objective is to preserve the true and fair view presented by the
financial statements and we will consider any audit differences,
individually and cumulatively, in that context.

Our planning materiality has been calculated on the basis of total

assets for the Joint Board per the 2011-12 financial statements as
detailed below. On this basis, our procedures will be designed to

detect individual errors over £1 million and we will report all errors
over £65,000 to the Joint Board.

Our final materiality will be based on the draft financial statements
and we will inform you of any changes to our planning materiality.

Total assets
£70m .
i Source: 2011-12 financial statements / planning discussions
P & i "“\‘_
e -
4 P designed lo detect
£35m / rocedures design elecl
! £68.2m 1 £1.0m 75% individual errors
| A Y,
/ \\@' 065m 59 Individual errors, where ’

identified, reported to Joint. .~
Board e
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We distinguish between
fraud and‘error and use our

sector knowledge to inform
specific control testing,

Other audit areas
Fraud versus error

Fraud versus error

The term “error’ refers to an unintentional misstatement in the
reporting of an entity. The term ‘fraud’ refers to an intentional act by
one or more individuals among management, those charged with
governance, employees, or third parties, involving the use of
deception or misconduct to obtain an unjust or illegal advantage.

There are two types of misstatements relevant to an auditor's
consideration of fraud:

= misstatements resulting from fraudulent financial reporting, which
involves intentional misstatements or omissions of amounts or
disclosures in financial reporting to ultimately deceive financial
statement users; and

= misstatements resulting from misappropriation of assets, which
typically involve theft of an entity's assets and is often
accompanied by false or misleading records or documents in
order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing.

Legality and propriety

The special accountabilities that attach to the conduct of public
business, and the use of public meney, mean that public sector audits
must be planned and undertaken from a wider perspective than in the
private sector. This means providing assurance, not only on the
financial statements but also providing a view, where appropriate, on
matters such as the legality, propriety, performance and the use of
resources in accordance with the principles of Best Value,

The Joint Board is responsible for establishing arrangements for
ensuring the proper conduct of its affairs including the legality of
aclivilies and transactions, and for menitoring the adequacy and
effectiveness of its arrangements. This includes involving those
charged with governance in the monitoring of arrangements.

Best Value

Under the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 (“the 2003 Act’),
auditors have a duty to be satisfied that councils have made proper
arrangements to secure best value. In response to these duties, the
Accounts Commission introduced specific arrangements for the audit
of best value and community planning under section 52 of the 2003
Act.

We will seek to understand the arrangements which management
has established internally to ensure Best Value in its use of the
resources made available to it.

#



Wa will liaise with your
ntemal auditors to minimise

duplication of effort.
Audit Scotiand and the
Agcounts Comimtssiol
‘parivdically undertakes
natlonallstidies on topics
relevant to the parformance
of focil govemment bodies.

We will review the Joint
Board's responsa to those
reports refevant to jis
activitios,

Other audit areas
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Internal audit; performance management

Internal audit arrangements

Intemational Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 610: Considering
the work of infernal audit requires us to:

# consider the activities of intemal audit and their effect, if any, on
extemal audit procedures;

u obtain a sufficient understanding of internal audit activities to
assist in planning the audit and developing an effective audit
approach;

= perform a preliminary assessment of internal audit when it
appears that intenal audit is relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in specific audit areas: and

= evaluate and test the work of internal audit, where use is made of
that work, in order to confirm its adequacy for our purposes.

We will review the internal audit work proposed or completed during
our interim audit visit to determine the extent of assurance that can
be taken from the work performed.

The general programme of work for 2012-13 will be reviewed for
significant issues to support our general work in assessing the Joint
Board's statement of intemnal control. In particular, we will consider
the findings of the budget setting and budgetary control review.

Local response to national studies

Audit Scotland and the Accounts Commission periodically undertakes
national studies on topics relevant to the performance of local
government bodies. While the recommendations from some of the
studies may have a national application, elements of the
recommendations are also capable of implementation at individual
organisation level, as appropriate. In order to ensure that added value
Is secured through the role of the Accounts Commission, Audit
Scotland and its appointed auditors, auditors will continue to ensure
that audited bodies respond appropriately to reports from the
Accounts Commission and Audit Scotland's programme of national
performance audits.

We will therefore be required to have consideration as to whether
relevant national performance reporis have been considered by the
Joint Board and that action has been planned in response.

& 2013 KFIG LLP, 5 U
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the audit of ths Jolnt Board
in 2011-12.

Delivery of the audit
KPMG team; reporting

Team member.

E Stephen Reid —Engagement Direcior
| Tel: 0131 527 8765
| Email; slephen.reid@kprmg.co.uk

i
Keith Macpherson - Audit Senior
Manager bety

| Tel: 0141 300 £508

Emall: keith.macpherson@kpmp.co.uk

' Robin Soutar - Avdi in-cherge

Reporting

Through regular meetings at appropriate levels, there will be open
and regular discussion between management, auditors and
management. As a result, accounting and control issues can be
identified and reported to allow you to manage them throughout
the year.

Audit Scotland's Code of Audit Practice requires us to
communicate to management findings arising as a result of the
audit work completed. Reports to management will be submitted
throughout the course of the year, with draft reports discussed and
agreed with management and action plans developed to include
the recommendations, target dates for implementation and the
member of staff responsible for implementation.

Siephen has overzll authority and

responasibliity for the audit engagement,

including reporting on the finandial

siatements, and will review key conclusfons
. reached by the engagement team on ail

accounting and audiling matlers.

Keith gsrves as the day-lo-day audit lisison
een management and KPMG and a first

onlect. He also provides lechnical

Keith Macpherson i
Audit Senior ;m
Manager

Robin Soutar
Audit In-charge

Audit assistants

| We envisage submission of the following report in respect of 2012-13:
i = by 31 September 2013, our annual audit report to the Joint Board
| and the Controller of Audit, including those matters which we are

| required to report to those charged with governance.

. Our report will be prepared in draft for the Joint Board meeting on 9
Septernber 2013, when the financial statements are considered.

G213 KPWG LLP, 8 UK Limied Lisbizy
KPMG Inlemationsl Cooparative (KPMWG
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acoording to the fee ranges
set by Audit Scotland.

7 Delivery of the audit
Fee proposais

Fee proposals

Audit Scotland requires that the fee for our work is set within an
indicative range, depending on the assessment of risk and other
factors facing the Joint Board Audit Scotland has notified us, and the
Joint Board, that the fee range for 2012-13 is £9,528 to £14,292
based on a mid-point of £11,910.

We have proposed a fee with management of £11,910, which
represents the mid-point on the indicative range.

As with other audits, our fee proposals are based on the following
assumptions to ensure an efficient audit process:

# draft report, financial statements and full electronic files of
supporting work papers available at the start date of our on site
visit agreed with officers preferably in electronic format;

¥ reliance on your internal controls:

% availability of key members of staff during the audit fieldwork; and

2 completion within the agreed timetable.

Should we be required to undertake significant additional audit work
in respect of any of the areas of audit focus, or should other matters
arise, we will discuss with management the impact of this on our
proposed fee,

Total
£

Mid-point on the fes range for 201112
2011-12 agreed fee
Mid-point on the fee range for 2012-13

Proposed audit fee for 2012-13

11,910

11,910
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Delivery of the audit
Audit timeline
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Auditing Standards require
‘us to communicate fo the

members of the Joint Board
i writing at least annually
oit any matters which may
réasonably be thoughtto
bear on our independeénce
and set out the safeguards
in place in reiation to these
matters and confitm that we
are independent,

4

Appendix one
independence

Professional ethical standards require us to communicate to you as

part of planning all significant facts and matiers, including those related

to the provision of non-audit services and the safeguards put in place

that, in our professional judgement, may reasonably be thought to bear
on KPMG LLP’s independence and the objectivity of the Audit Director

and the audit team. This letter is intended to comply with this

requirement although we will communicate any significant judgements

made about threats to objectivity and independence and the
appropriaieness of safeguards put in place.

We are satisfied that our general procedures support our
independence and objectivity, except for those detailed below where

additional safeguards are in place.
General procedures to safeguard independence and objectivity

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent.
As part of our ethics and independence policies, all KPMG LLP Audit
Directors and staff annually confirm their compliance with our ethics
and independence policies and procedures including in particular that
they have no prohibited shareholdings. Our ethics and independence
policies and procedures are fully consistent with the requirements of

the APB Ethical Standards. As a result we have underlying safeguards

in place to maintain independence through:
# Instilling professional values

®  Communications

B Internal accountability

®  Risk management

®  |ndependent reviews.

Please inform us if you would like to discuss any of these aspects of
our procedures in more detail,

Confirmation of audit independence

We confirm that as of 19 March 2013, in our professional judgment,
KPMG LLP is independent within the meaning of regulatory and
professional requirements and the objectivity of the Audit Director and
audit staff is not impaired.

This report is intended solely for the information of the members of the
Joint Board and should not be used for any other purposes.

Yours faithfully

KPMG LLP
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Audit Scotland code of audit practice responsibilities of the Joint Board

Financial statements

Audited bodies’ financial statements are an essential part of
accounting for their stewardship of the resources made available to
them and their performance in the use of those resources. Audited
bodies are respensible for:

w  ensuring the regularity of transactions, by putting in place
systems of internal control to ensure that they are in accordance
with the appropriate authority;

u  maintaining proper accounting records;

®  preparing financial statements which give a frue and fair view of
their financial position and their expenditure and income, in
accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework (eg,
the Financial Reporting Manual or an Accounting Code of
Practice);

@ preparing and publishing with their financial statements an
annual governance statement, statement on intemal control or
statement on internal financial control and a remuneration report;
and

= preparing consolidation packs and, in larger bodies, preparing a
Whole of Government Accounts return,

Systems of internal control

Audited bodies are responsible for developing and implementing
systems of intemnal control, including risk management, financial,
operational and compliance controls. They are required to conduct
annual reviews of the effectiveness of their governance, systems of
internal control, or internal financial control, and report publicly that
they have done so. Such reviews should take account of the work of
internal audit and be carried out by those charged with governance,
usually through bodies’ audit committees.

Prevention and detection of fraud and irregularities

Audited bodies are responsible for establishing arrangements to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularity. This includes:

developing, promoting and monitoring compliance with standing
orders and financial instructions;

developing and implementing strategies to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularity;

receiving and investigating alleged breaches of proper standards
of financial conduct or fraud and irregularity; and

participating, when required, in data matching exercises camried
out by Audit Scotland.

Standards of conduct and arrangements for the prevention and
detection of bribery and corruption

Audited bodies are responsible for ensuring that their affairs are
managed in accordance with proper standards of conduct and
should put proper arrangements in place for:

implementing and monitoring compliance with appropriate
guidance on standards of conduct and codes of conduct for
members and officers;

promoting appropriate values and standards; and

developing, promoting and monitoring compliance with standing
orders and financial instructions,
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Appendix three

(continued)

Audit Scotland code of audit practice — responsibilities of the Joint Board

Financial position

Audited bodies are responsible for conducting their affairs and for
pulting in place proper arrangements to ensure that their financial
position is soundly based having regard to:

m  such financial monitoring and reporting arrangements as may be
specified;

= compliance with any statutory financial requirements and
achievement of financial targets;

= balances and reserves, including strategies about levels and
future use; and

u the impact of planned future policies and foreseeable
developments on their financial position.

Best Value

Achievement of Best Value or value for money depends on the
existence of sound management arrangements for services,
including procedures for planning, appraisal, authorisation and
control, accountability and evaluation of the use of resources.
Audited bodies are responsible for ensuring that these matters are
given due priority and resources, and that proper procedures are
established and operate satisfactorily.
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